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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to restrictions on noises resulting from the operation of boats and other watercraft; 
and to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 6 Attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the hearing. 
 
Senator Robert Erbele, District 28 (0:15-3:29) Introduced the bill. This bill regards noises 
of watercraft on the river. It’s here on behalf of constituents of mine that live along the river 
and have been bothered by loud noises all night on the river next to their home. After 
repeated requests not to, and getting law enforcement involved; that issue has continued to 
the point of harassment. We bring this bill to address some of the concerns of decibel noises 
and hours of operation. As with most bills, once you get them out there, other concerns come 
up. What has happened since drafting concerns what kind of boats and what hours? If I’m 
going out duck hunting and setting a decoy; am I in violation? Yesterday, the Director of 
Game and Fish, Terry Steinwand, and our constituents sat down and came up with 
amendments that are more specific and address those other concerns that arose from the 
duck hunters and the fishermen not wanting to be in violation. Please see attachment #1 
for amendments. I have amendments that essentially replace the bill. Addresses the issue 
of airboats, which are the perpetrators of the violation we are trying to address here.  
 
Representative Mike Brandenburg, District 28 (4:00-5:20) I wanted to say some bills 
come forward that you really don’t want to bring forward, but you have to because you have 
some people who abuse the rules. There are some people out there who are very respectful, 
they go out on the river and are quiet. Then there are people with big powerboats, big 
engines, and big spotlights. At three in the morning, spotlights shining on your house, trying 
to irritate to make trouble. In no way do we want to hurt the sportsmen who is respectful of 
the people on the river. Those people that abuse that privilege need to be toned in.   
 
Senator Piepkorn: What’s the purpose of an airboat? 
 
Representative Brandenburg: Other than going up and down the river, it’s not fishing, it’s 
recreation. But when you’re out there at 3am in the dark, very apt to cause an accident. I 
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don’t understand why this is even here, this hasn’t been a one-time event, this has been 
going on for years. The parties involved, they need to be tamed down, have fun out there, 
but don’t impact people. We don’t want to hurt people playing by the rules and doing things 
right.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Is this one individual we’re dealing with? 
 
Representative Brandenburg: Yeah, you got one guy out there, maybe with relatives with 
big boats, they’re having too much fun.  
 
Senator Roers: You keep using the term internal combustion engine, what does that mean 
to you? 
 
Representative Brandenburg: You’ve got these boats with twin engines, they make a lot of 
noise. I had a Challenger with a big engine in it and a hotrod and glass back muffler. You 
could hear me coming down the street. That’s exactly what this internal combustion engine 
would do, you can hear it five miles down the river. 
 
Senator Cook: You’re identifying two crimes, a muffler has to be on the boat 24-hours a day 
or say class 1, and you can’t drive the boat, period, after sunset? 
 
Representative Brandenburg: This amendment was worked on by the parties, and may 
need some smoothing, right now it muffles it down so we don’t have noise in the middle of 
the night? 
 
Senator Cook: What is the penalty for a class 1 non-criminal offense? 
 
Representative Brandenburg: I’m not sure, I hear $50 class 1. Class 2 is $25. 
 
Sharon Schiermeister, Hazelton resident (10:15-12:00) Testified in favor, please see 
attachment #2 for testimony (12:05-13:15) Attachments #3-4 are video clips. This 
video was taken outside on the river (13:30-14:00) 
 https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2342/sb2342-
snatres-01312019-attachment3.mov 
 

This video is inside with the windows shut; this boat is 2-3 miles up-river. 
https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2342/sb2342-snatres-
01312019-attachment4.mov 
 

Resumed testimony (14:05-17:20) 
This doesn’t apply to just us, others are here to testify how it affects them, it’s anyone who 
lives by the river. To answer Senator Piepkorn’s question, what is the purpose of an airboat, 
our understanding is they’re fishing for carp, hence the spotlights and going into the 
backwaters.  
 
Leslie Gimbel, Hazelton resident (19:05-19:42) Testified in support.  I live 3 miles north 
of the Hazelton boat landing, these guys come up into the Carlson Bottoms, they’re hunting 

https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2342/sb2342-snatres-01312019-attachment3.mov
https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2342/sb2342-snatres-01312019-attachment3.mov
https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2342/sb2342-snatres-01312019-attachment4.mov
https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2342/sb2342-snatres-01312019-attachment4.mov
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carp and non-game fish. I don’t begrudge them; I just wish they would be quiet. The big boats 
fishermen use aren’t as loud during the day. I hope we quiet them down.  
 
Chris Grondahl, Hazelton resident (20:09-22:19) Testified in support, please see 
attachment # 5.  
 
Brooke Larson, Hazelton resident (22:55-30:30) Testified in opposition, please see 
attachment # 6.  
 
Chair Unruh:  Have you seen a copy of the proposed amendments? They would take away 
the original bill, and replace it with regulations only on airboats. Are airboats frequently used 
in the activities you described in your testimony?   
 
Brooke Larson: We own that airboat in the earlier video, we have since made great efforts 
to quiet it down: purchasing the $600 muffler as well as a Honda generator which is the 
quietest on the market. Utilizing our airboat is the only way to bowfish, and to maintain the 
wildlife population in this area. They are highly utilized and very needed. They’re not used to 
run up and down the river to cause noise, it is for a purpose. 
  
Chair Unruh: Do you happen to know the decibel difference between the decibels we heard 
in the video and what they would be after the muffler was applied?  
 
Brooke Larson:  We have not measured, but the motor is the same as any in a truck, in 
addition to the mufflers that were applied. 
 
Senator Cook: Do you have a guiding service? 
 
Brooke Larson:  We did; we no longer do. 
 
Senator Cook: According to the bill as it is now, the only thing that appears to affect you is 
the restriction on when you can operate it. If we took that out, you’d be fine with the bill? 
 
Brooke Larson:  I’m not sure what the amendment says for per say; I don’t know if that 
would affect us or not. Accessing a boat ramp, a boat will still make noise, I don’t know if the 
mufflers make it under the proposed decibels or not, but we have made it as quiet as possible.  
 
Chair Unruh: We’ll give you plenty of opportunity to look at these.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: One of the testimonies was disrupting night game, you’ve made the claim 
that you’re helping the fishing environment by getting rid of the carp. What’s your opinion of 
disturbing wildlife in these pretty quiet bays?  
 
Brooke Larson:  We also use our airboat to go duck hunting the morning. We respectfully 
use the river and the channels to get to the shallows where carp are. We use it in the morning 
to go duck hunting, we almost always shoot our limit; no effect on the number of wildlife in 
the area.  
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Derek Larson, Mandan resident (35:30) William Larson owns the airboat; there have been 
claims he’s purposely disturbed the peace. I’ve seen him take extreme measures to avoid 
Mr. Schiermeister, to be respectful, to use other ramps, so to say he’s done it on purpose, is 
false. 
 
Chair Unruh: How many complaints does the Department receive about noise at night on 
waterways?  
 
Robert Timian, Chief Game Warden, North Dakota Game and Fish (36:40) I do not have 
that exact number, we do get some complaints, occasionally we get a call from the Marina in 
town, those are in city limits so those are referred to the city. Currently there is no noise law, 
for Game and Fish to enforce. 
 
Senator Roers: Could you tell me; do you have a decibel reading maximum? 
 
Robert Timian: There is none, there is no law on the books, regarding noise in boats. It 
doesn’t exist. 
 
Senator Roers: You don’t have jurisdiction in the city limits, do their laws include a decibel 
reading? 
 
Robert Timian: I don’t know; each city can make its own ordinances.  
 
Senator Schaible: I assume that a political sub, like a county could also do that and create 
their own limits. 
 
Robert Timian: Yes, I would assume they could. There is a law on the books regarding 
boating, 20.1-13, that when it comes to the actual waters, I don’t think it was written 
specifically to talk about noise, it’s more like idle speed and those things; political subs cannot 
make regulation or rule regarding boats that is more restrictive than state law. They can 
mirror it, but they can’t exceed it. But that really doesn’t adjust for noise, it was more how 
boats operate.  
 
Chair Unruh:  Closed the public hearing.  
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Chair Unruh: I have received quite a few phone calls and emails on this topic after the 
hearing was complete, mostly from folks who had airboats who are concerned about 
restrictions on being able to use them. The amendments that were proposed with the 
introduction of the bill were also hoghouse amendments, those original amendments would 
have limited the hours they could use the boats. I did receive an email from the proponents 
of the original bill saying they would consider adjusting those nighttime operational hours if 
we decided to go with that amendment that was introduce with the bill, which had an hour 
after sunset and the proponents agree that maybe 11-5 would be more appropriate. Those 
amendments also included a requirement for a muffler; and what my amendments do, is 
require muffler on the engine, if that muffler is not included on the engine, the parties would 
be guilty of class 1 non-criminal offence, which is a $50 fine. Those other amendments had 
an increase in penalty to a misdemeanor for any additional offenses, which I removed from 
here. This (please see attachment #1) requires them to have a muffler, if they don’t have a 
muffler, they get a $50 fine every time they get caught. I also removed the limitation on hours 
of operation. I know we talked about that being a local issue, the county does not have the 
ability to limit the hours of operation in that manner, so this couldn’t be dealt with that way. I 
felt it was specific enough and that it’s not our business to be telling folks when they can use 
public waters. I support the amendments, but even as amended I’m not sure I support the 
bill, the amendments make it better.  
 
Senator Schaible: I move to adopt the 01003 amendment to SB 2342.  
Senator Cook: I second.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Is there a method for measuring decibels, or is there a presumed effect 
of the muffler, it’s going to lower the noise to a certain level, can we talk about this a little bit? 
What does this say to that?  
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Chair Unruh: I was not interested in putting a decibel limit on this. We’ve talked about decibel 
limits in this committee before. They are very difficult to measure; especially when you’re on 
the water, depending on the wind and temperature and how you close you are to the boat all 
will change what kind of decibels come out and carry up the hill where the house was located. 
I did not feel it was appropriate for us to put our folks in charge of enforcement in a position 
where they have to make those calls, so I left that out. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: So what’s the criteria, if the complainant says they have a muffler but it’s 
not doing the trick? What do we do then? 
 
Chair Unruh: We might see them back here. 
 
Senator Roers: I think the amendment is nice, it does a lot. I received emails and calls, one 
from a neighbor. He indicated that this problem is between two individuals and that the 
landing was there before the house was built. The house was built within 150 yards of the 
boat landing, so the disruption should have been expected. After looking at all this stuff, I 
can’t support this bill either.  
 
Senator Schaible: Mufflers are the same conversation as with cars. What’s a legal muffler, 
what’s too loud, what’s not loud enough, it’s all subjective, this says automobile it would be 
under the same criteria as that, I can live with that.   
 
A voice vote was taken.  
Amendment is adopted.  
 
Senator Roers: I move a Do Not Pass As Amended. 
Vice-Chair Kreun: I second. 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion failed 3-3-0. 
 
Senator Cook: I move Do Pass As Amended. 
Senator Schaible: I second.  
 
Senator Cook:  I had a guy call me we chatted, I asked if he had a problem with the muffler, 
he said he didn’t have any problem.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: It’s not just this one individual, according to testimony and people I’ve 
talked to, people up and down the river. They go up the river and into the backwaters. I think 
it goes somewhat beyond this one individual.  
 
 A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion passes 4-2-0. 
 
Senator Cook will carry. 
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the committee action.  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2342 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
regulation of airboats to prevent excessive noise; and to provide a penalty. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Airboat regulation - Penalty. 

1.:. For purposes of this section, unless context otherwise requires: 

a. "Airboat" means a vessel designed primarily for use in shallow waters 
and powered by an internal combustion engine with an airplane-type 
propeller mounted above the stern and used to push air across a set 
of rudders. 

b. "Muffler" means an automotive-style sound-suppression device or 
system designed to abate effectively the sound of exhaust gases 
emitted from an internal combustion engine and prevent excessive 
sound when installed on an engine. 

2. The exhaust of an internal combustion engine used on an airboat operated 
on the waters of this state must be equipped with an automotive-style 
factory muffler, underwater exhaust, or other manufactured device capable 
of adequately muffling the sound of the exhaust of the engine. The use of 
cutouts or flex pipe as the sole source of muffling is prohibited. This 
subsection does not apply to authorized law enforcement airboats or other 
emergency response airboats. 

3. An airboat operator who violates subsection 2 is guilty of a class 1 
noncriminal offense. 

4. An airboat operator cited for a violation of subsection 2 may not operate 
the airboat that is not in compliance with subsection 2 until a muffler is 
installed." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0987.01003 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2342: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Unruh, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (4 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2342 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
regulation of airboats to prevent excessive noise; and to provide a penalty. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Airboat regulation - Penalty . 

.L For purposes of this section, unless context otherwise requires: 

a. "Airboat" means a vessel designed primarily for use in shallow 
waters and powered by an internal combustion engine with an 
airplane-type propeller mounted above the stern and used to push 
air across a set of rudders. 

b. "Muffler" means an automotive-style sound-suppression device or 
system designed to abate effectively the sound of exhaust gases 
emitted from an internal combustion engine and prevent excessive 
sound when installed on an engine. 

2.:_ The exhaust of an internal combustion engine used on an airboat 
operated on the waters of this state must be equipped with an 
automotive-style factory muffler, underwater exhaust, or other 
manufactured device capable of adequately muffling the sound of the 
exhaust of the engine. The use of cutouts or flex pipe as the sole source 
of muffling is prohibited. This subsection does not apply to authorized law 
enforcement airboats or other emergency response airboats. 

3. An airboat operator who violates subsection 2 is guilty of a class 1 
noncriminal offense. 

4. An airboat operator cited for a violation of subsection 2 may not operate 
the airboat that is not in compliance with subsection 2 until a muffler is 
installed." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to regulation of airboats to prevent excessive noise; and provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1,2,3,4 

 
Chairman Porter:  Opened the hearing on SB 2342. 
 
Sen. Robert Erbele, District 28:   Introduced this bill on behalf of constituents who live 
along the river reservoir relating to water craft running all hours of the night.  We wanted to 
address noises and it was quite broad and now with the amendment brought by Game and 
Fish that narrowed this to deal with just airboats.  That is the issue out there. They are 
running all hours of the night and right up to the shore.  Law enforcement has been called 
and there hasn’t been any resolution.  We tried to bring some reason to this issue.  We do 
recognize people has the right to recreation on the reservoir but at some point you need to 
be respectful of other people.  There is also a timeframe at first but all the Senate did is 
require the boat to have a muffler.  I still would like you to consider a timeframe, even if it 
was around 11pm to 5 am because with the airboat the big blades are really what makes 
the noise the muffler would not help much.   \ 
 
4:40 
 
Sharon and Durant Schiermeister:   In support of SB 2342 presented Attachment #1 
with purposed amendment along with video to show the noise level of the airboats.  
 
11:57 
 
Rep. Anderson: Wouldn’t it be better to put a decibel limit on the noise because up at Lake 
Metigoshe they have those cigar boats up there that are very noisy?   That might be 
something necessary to enforce this.  
 
Sharon Schiermeister:   We are comfortable with a decibel limit added. 
 
Rep Heinert:  You had talked about decibel limits originally? 
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Sharon Schiermeister:   Yes, in the bill as it was originally posed, did have decibel limits in 
it.  
 
Rep Heinert:  Do you remember what decibel limit was talked about? 
 
Sharon Schiermeister:    It was noise exceeding 88 decibels.  That was based on a 
municipal ordinance somewhere.  
 
Rep Heinert:   When you met with the Senate side were they in disagreement with 
decibels or the time? 
 
Sharon Schiermeister:  I think it was more on enforcement because it was introduced as 
broader for any watercraft.  So there was lots of concerns on that so we did offer an 
amendment to limit to the airboat and the muffler requirement and also a time limit.  The 
Senate only chose the muffler amendment. 
 
15:23 
 
Rep Heinert:   The way I see it is the only way we could enforce this is with a decibel level 
and time for the duration of the decibel level and the time of day.  It is close to an hour in 
most city ordinances.    
 
Sharon Schiermeister: Handed out written testimony from Brett W. Mealio in support of 
amended SB 2342.  Was not present to give oral testimony.  See Attachment # 2. 
 
17:00 
 
Les Gimbel:   In support of SB 2342.  See Attachment # 3.  
 
18:45 
 
Chris Grondahl, Bismarck Resident :   In support of SB 2342.  See Attachment # 4. 
 
22:31 
 
Chairman Porter: questions, further support?  Any opposition?  I have a question for Chief 
Timian.  This is not a new problem on the river, how has it been resolved in the area north 
from Ft Lincoln up to Double Ditch?  
 
Chief Robert Timian, North Dakota Game and Fish:  Currently we haven’t had this 
particular issue in that corridor with the airboats.  Inside the corridor there is no noise 
ordinance on the river itself.  The marinas which are within city limits are governed by any 
city noise ordinances.  That is usually where you have the parties and loud music on boats 
in the marinas.  There is very few noise complaints from on the river itself. 
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Chairman Porter: So the city limits of both Bismarck and Mandan extend to the center 
point of the Missouri River don’t their noise ordinances also extend to the center point of 
the Missouri River?   
 
Chief Robert Timian:  I will not comment on how the city chooses to enforce their 
ordinances. 
 
Chairman Porter:  So the ordinance may extend but the enforcement doesn’t seem to be 
going with?  
 
Chief Robert Timian:  I am not in the position to discuss how the city enforce their 
ordinances.   In talking with one of the chiefs that they have some issues with enforceability 
of some of their noise regulations.  We typically do not get noise complaints from the river 
itself. From the marinas, yes.  We provide assistant to city officers to get them out there.  In 
our Missouri River enforcement program we have an agreement with cities and counties in 
the area that patrol with our officers when there is one of those issues.  We have an officer 
with us when we go in. 
 
Rep Heinert:   In reference with the river the cities do say that they run to the middle of the 
river, but they actually run to the water’s edge and then it is the responsibility of the state or 
the counties associated with that waterway to carry out any duties on that water way that 
are needed. 
 
Rep. Keiser:   I will make sure you get copies of all complaints I get. At night the sand bars 
become party time and with the new boats and new speaker systems it’s affected camping 
at Ft. Lincoln. When the water is low on the sand bars the parties go to 2-3 am in the 
morning. That is not in the marina it is on the sand bar. 
 
Chief Robert Timian:  I didn’t say people are not upset but I can’t record it when they don’t 
contact me.  
 
Rep. Zubke:  Do your wardens have the ability to monitor decibels? 
 
Chief Robert Timian:  No we do not carry a meter to measure decibels.  Currently there is 
no sound regulation. In the original bill we saw there was a decibel level measured at a 
certain number of feet.  It is not that you can’t do it but there’s challenges with boats moving 
around.  A complaint comes in and then the boat isn’t there when you get there.    It’s not 
impossible but decibels are a challenge to enforce.   
 
Chairman Porter:   Any other questions?  Seeing none.  Closed the hearing on SB 2342. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to regulation of airboats to prevent excessive noise; and provide a penalty. 

 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2 

 
Chairman Porter:  Opened the hearing on SB 2342. 
 
Rep Heinert: presented Attachment 1 and 2.  After we heard testimony on the airboats down south 
of Bismarck, I found out who the person in the airboat was, talked to them and put together some 
thoughts. We have here an engrossed hog house amendment to noise regulation from boats and 
identifying that any boat on any waterway in the state between midnight and 5 am may not produce 
noise in excess of 88 decibels for more than 10 minutes. For the purpose of this section the 
measurement of decibels shall be measured from the shoreline closest to the location for which the 
complaint or other noise is received.  A boat operator sited for this may not use it until some form of 
muffle to reduce it below 88 decibels after hours is obtained. I would move this motion. 
 
Rep. Ruby: second 
 
Chairman Porter: further discussion.  
 
Rep. Ruby: what’s the penalty for a class 1 noncriminal offense? An infraction? 
 
Rep Heinert:  Class 1 non criminal isn’t an infraction so it’s up to $500. 
 
Rep. Devlin:  How many law enforcement agencies have the decibel meter to do this? 
 
Rep Heinert:  First let me back up to Rep. Ruby’s questions. I don’t think $500 is right. I think it’s a 
different number. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  an infraction is a criminal offense, so I think we need to clarify. The class 1 
noncriminal, I’m not certain what that means, but an infraction is a criminal offense. 
 
Rep Heinert: look under G&F laws.  
 
Chairman Porter:  There’s noncriminal charges inside of G&F laws this would apply to.  
Rep Heinert:  How many have a decibel meter? I don’t believe many do. A lot of the police 
departments do because they have decibels levels for motor cycles and those events in cities, but 
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they are not expensive. It’s fairly inexpensive to have a small decibel meter available. I’m assuming 
G&F is going to get 99% of these calls so they’d probably have to purchase them for some of their 
officers around waterways where complaints are coming from. 
 
Chairman Porter: further discussion?  Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
Phone a friend. Called Robert Timian, ND Game and Fish, on the phone while in committee on the 
record.  Describe to us a Class 1 noncriminal offense and the penalty. 
 
Robert Timian, ND Game and Fish: in 20.1 there’s 2 classes spelled out.  A Class 1 is $50 fee 
and Class 2 is a $25 fee. They’re both noncriminal so the court charge that would be put on a 
criminal side is not part of it. That’s the fine.  
 
Roberta Timian: yes if you were charging a person out for a violation that was specifically said to 
be a Class 1 noncriminal, the max that could happen to them would be a $50 fee.  
 
Chairman Porter: So we’re clear inside 20.1 a Class 1 noncriminal offense if $50. 
 
Rep. Ruby: I would move a Do Pass as amended on SB 2342. 
 
Rep. Anderson: second 
 
Chairman Porter:  We have a motion for a Do Pass as Amended and a second on SB 2342.  
Discussion? 
 
Rep. Devlin: why expand it to all boats?  Are there all kinds of complaints?  
 
Rep. Anderson:  up at Lake Metigoshe, they have those cigarette boats, the motor sits in the back 
of the boat, no muffler, they make a lot of noise. 
 
Rep Heinert:  We did have some of the cigarette boats here that day we were talking about 
airboats because they were worried we were talking about them as well. They wanted to make sure 
they were following up on their end. I did talk to a couple of them and I think they’re ok with this too. 
 
Chairman Porter: further discussion?  Roll call vote 11 yes,  0 no  3 absent.  Rep Heinert is carrier. 
Meeting adjourned. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Heinert 

March 12, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2342 

Page 1, line 2, replace "airboats" with "boats" 

Page 1, line 7, replace "Airboat regulation" with "Regulation of noise from boats" 

Page 1, line 8, remove "For purposes of this section, unless context otherwise requires:" 

Page 1, replace lines 9 through 14 with "A boat operated on the waters of this state between 
the hours of twelve midnight and five a.m. may not produce a noise in excess of 
eighty-eight decibels for more than ten minutes." 

Page 1, line 15, remove "The exhaust of an internal combustion engine used on an airboat 
operated on the" 

Page 1, replace lines 16 through 20 with "For purposes of subsection 1, the decibel level of a 
boat must be measured from the shoreline closest to the location from which a 
complainant or other individual noticed the noise." 

Page 1, line 21, replace "An airboat" with "A boat" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "subsection 2" with "this section" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "An airboat" with "A boat" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "subsection 2" with "this section" 

Page 1, line 23, replace the second "airboat" with "boat" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "is not in compliance with subsection 2" with "produced the noise in 
violation of this section" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0987.03001 
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BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2 34.;?.__ . 
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D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: __ , 9 ___ , ___ o_ci_i_--,_. __ D_3 ___ o_o_l _______ _ 
Recommendation: )f Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 47 _001 
Carrier: Heinert 

Insert LC: 19.0987.03001 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2342, as engrossed: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS (11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2342 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, replace "airboats" with "boats" 

Page 1, line 7, replace "Airboat regulation" with "Regulation of noise from boats" 

Page 1, line 8, remove "For purposes of this section, unless context otherwise requires:" 

Page 1, replace lines 9 through 14 with "A boat operated on the waters of this state between 
the hours of twelve midnight and five a.m. may not produce a noise in excess of 
eighty-eight decibels for more than ten minutes." 

Page 1, line 15, remove "The exhaust of an internal combustion engine used on an airboat 
operated on the" 

Page 1, replace lines 16 through 20 with "For purposes of subsection 1, the decibel level of a 
boat must be measured from the shoreline closest to the location from which a 
complainant or other individual noticed the noise." 

Page 1, line 21, replace "An airboat" with "A boat" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "subsection 2" with "this section" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "An airboat" with "A boat" 

Page 1, line 23, replace "subsection 2" with "this section" 

Page 1, line 23, replace the second "airboat" with "boat" 

Page 1, line 24, replace "is not in compliance with subsection 2" with "produced the noise in 
violation of this section" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 47 _001 
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SB 2342 
4/11/2019 

Job Number 34680 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☒ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Marne Johnson 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to regulation of boats to prevent excessive noise; and to provide a penalty. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No attachments  

 
Chairman Cook: Opened the conference committee. All conferees were present  
 
Representative Heinert: The initial bill was on air boats, we received additional calls from 
other concerned citizens, other concerned waterways in reference to what’s commonly 
referred to as cigarette boats, a high horse power, big engine, fiberglass boats, from the 
lakes, extremely loud, no mufflers. We took a look at this bill, we thought we could enact 
something for the state of North Dakota, not just one location. We developed the 
amendments on the 04000 version, we said between midnight and 5 am, noise from a boat 
may not exceed an excess of 88 decibels for more than 10 minutes, identified the 
measurement of the decibels needs to be done from the shore closest to where the complaint 
is received from.  
 
Chairman Cook: Does Burleigh County have a decibel reader? 
 
Representative Heinert:  They had one, I know Game and Fish has one, I know several 
police departments have them, I know several city ordinances across the state have decibel 
levels for after a time from at night, and they can take measurements. In this area, that 
occurred for a couple outdoor concerts and for the racetrack that was on the east side of the 
city. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: I had a question about being able to measure the decibels for 10 minutes. 
That could prove to be a problem, getting it for that long.  
 
Representative Heinert:  The thought process is we felt like we had to allow boats to get off 
the dock and get out of the locations between the hours, it’s an arbitrary number, we were 
trying to calculate how long it would take one to unload a boat and get out of the location of 
where they are at that wouldn’t create the noise level that disturbs people. 
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Senator Piepkorn: Another concern that was voiced is that there is a muffler for the airboats, 
but what about the other boats, is there a means to muffle that sound as well? 
 
Representative Heinert:  I would assume so, I do know engines, anytime you put headers 
on an engine, you have the ability to some kind of muffling system on that as well. I assume 
they are no different, it is an automotive engine they put on those boats.   
 
Representative Lefor: Was there any discussion about limiting use of boats between 
midnight and 5? 
 
Chairman Cook: No. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: Carp hunting at night, bow hunting at night, that’s why we didn’t consider 
it.  
 
Chairman Cook: Do you have any consideration of just requiring mufflers? Did you discuss 
that? 
 
Representative Heinert:  We did discuss that, I took a look, most of them do have a muffler 
system, having an airboat for the county, I don’t believe it’s the engine that causes the 
problem, it’s the fan noise that causes that issue. As that fan starts up and starts running full 
blast, between that and the engine, ours at the county had a muffler system, it exceeds that 
decibel level.  
 
Chairman Cook: It’s tough to put a muffler on the fan. 
 
Representative Heinert: Our intent is to stay where we’re at.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: From my point of view, it appears as though we passed it out of the 
Senate, it does what we intended, although it includes more boats; I think we could accede 
to the House amendments, and pass this bill. If there are some problems come back in two 
years, I think we can fulfill the intent of the original purpose and be comfortable with that.  
I move to accede to the House amendments.  
Senator Roers: I second. 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion passes 5-1-0. 
 
Senator Roers and Representative Heinert will carry. 
 
Chairman Cook: Closed the conference committee.  
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BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2342 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
Action Taken � SENATE accede to House Amendments 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
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House Carrier 
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Com Conference Committee Report 
April 15, 2019 8:17AM 

Module ID: s_cfcomrep_67 _002 
Senate Carrier: J. Roers 

House Carrier: Heinert 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2342, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Cook, J. Roers, Piepkorn and 

Reps. Heinert, Bosch, Lefor) recommends that the SENATE ACCEDE to the House 
amendments as printed on SJ page 1069 and place SB 2342 on the Seventh order. 

Engrossed SB 2342 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_cfcomrep_67 _002 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Erbele 

January 31, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2342 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
regulation of airboats to prevent excessive noise; and to provide a penalty. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows: 

Airboat regulation - Penalty. 

i_ For purposes of this section, unless context otherwise requires: 

� "Airboat" means a vessel that is designed primarily for use in shallow 
waters and powered by an internal combustion engine with an 
airplane-type propeller mounted above the stern and used to push air 
across a set of rudders . 

.Q,. "Muffler" means an automotive-style sound-suppression device or 
system designed to abate effectively the sound of exhaust gases 
emitted from an internal combustion engine and prevent excessive 
sound when installed on an engine. 

£. The exhaust of an internal combustion engine used on an airboat operated 
on the waters of this state must be equipped with an automotive-style 
factory muffler, underwater exhaust, or other manufactured device capable 
of adequately muffling the sound of the exhaust of the engine. The use of 
cutouts or flex pipe as the sole source of muffling is prohibited. This 
subsection does not apply to authorized law enforcement airboats or other 
emergency response airboats. 

� An airboat operator who violates subsection 2 is guilty of a class 1 
noncriminal offense. An airboat operator cited for a second or subsequent 
violation of subsection 2 involving the same airboat is guilty of a class B 
misdemeanor. 

4. An airboat operator cited for a violation of subsection 2 may not operate 
the airboat that is not in compliance with subsection 2 until a muffler is 
installed . 

.5.:, Airboat operation is prohibited from thirty minutes after sunset until thirty 
minutes after sunrise each day. This subsection does not apply to 
authorized law enforcement airboats or other emergency response 
airboats 

Q,. An airboat operator cited for a violation of subsection 5 is guilty of a class 1 
noncriminal offense." 

Page No. 1 19.0987.01001 
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Test imony of Dura nt and Sharon Schiermeister in  support of SB 2342 

Madam  Cha i r, mem bers of the Committee, my n ame  i s  Sha ron  Sch ie rm e ister . I h ave taken t ime 
off work to be  he re tod ay, a long with my h usband  Du ra nt, to test ify i n  support of SB  2342 .  We 
a re 3 rd gene rat io n  fa rmers i n  Emmons County. Ou r  fa rm i s  a long the M i ssou ri Rive r and we l ive 
by the  Haze lton recreat ion a rea,  wh ich is about 30 m i les  south of B i sma rck on H ighway 1804. 
We a re the  ones  who asked ou r  legi s l ators to i ntrod uce th i s  b i l l .  The p u rpose of the b i l l  i s  to 
esta b l i sh  a no i se  restr ict ion for watercraft at n ight .  

We'd l i ke to p rovi d e  you some background  for the reason beh i nd  th is b i l l .  We h ave l ived by the 
Haze lton Recreat ion  Area for over 35 years .  This i s  a p u b l i c  recreat ion a rea managed by the 
Corps of Engi n eers .  I t  i s  a very popu l a r  a rea  for loca l and out-of-state fi she rman ,  waterfowl 
h u nters, a n d  p l ea su re boaters . Most activity at the boat ram p  ta kes p l ace d u ri ng  d ayl ight 
hou rs .  So why the reason for a noise restr ict ion?  

About  fou r  yea rs ago,  a n  Everg lades sty le a i rboat sta rted u s i ng  the  boat  ramp .  It wou l d  l a u nch 
at n i ght, r ight before d a rk, and be out on the  water unt i l  the  ea r ly hou rs of the  morn i ng .  The 
no i se  from th is  type  of boat i s  u n be l ievab l e .  I t  i s  l i ke the  sou nd  of a n  a i rp l a ne  tryi ng  to ta ke off 
that n ever gets a i r  born . When it i s  i n  the v ic i n ity of a res i dence, it wi l l  wake you up from a 
sou n d  s l eep  a n d  p revent you from going  back to s l eep .  Th i s  even h appens  when t he  w indows 
a re shut  a n d  a i r  con d it ioner  i s  run n i ng, it is t hat lou d .  M any t imes, we h ave h ad  to s leep in ou r  
basement to esca pe  t he  no i se .  We've not iced that the  peop l e  on  these boats where ea r  
p rotect ion  a s  we l l .  We have a coup l e  o f  short v ideos to  demonstrate the  no i s e  th ese boats 
ma ke .  

We fi rst contacted the  Emmons Cou nty Sheriff's  Depa rtment to  fi l e  a comp l a i nt .  The  sheriff, 
G a ry S ande rs, a dv ised u s  that there i s  noth i ng  they cou l d  do .  We then  contacted the  loca l 
gam e  warden ,  E r i c  Sch m idt with the N D  Game  & F i sh .  H e  i n d icated there was noth i n g  he  cou ld  
do .  We a l so contacted the Corps of  Engi neers to see if  they wou l d  imp lement  q u i et hou rs for 
the  boat ram p, eq u a l  to what they h ave posted at the i r  cam pgrounds, but  they were not 
i nterested in do i ng  t h at .  We met with the Emmons  Cou nty Com m iss ione rs a n d  they did not 
know what  to d o  for th i s  s i tuat ion s ince it was dea l i ng  with watercraft .  We h ave a l so had  
conversat ions  w i th  Terry Ste inwand ,  t he  d i recto r of ND Game  & F i s h ,  to  make h im  aware of  the  
s i tuat ion ,  but  h e  i n d icated there is  noth i ng  they ca n do  u nder  cu rrent l aw. F i n a l ly, my h usband  
and  a ne igh bor  t r i ed  app roach ing  the owner  of  the a i rboat to  let h im  know how d i sru ptive the  
no i se  of the  boat  was to  those of  us  l ivi ng  i n  the  a rea  a nd  suggested he  respect the  com mun ity 
by not keep i ng  u s  u p  a l l  n ight, but that a lso was not successfu l .  And now the re is a 2nd a i rboat 
t hat i s  u s i ng  t he  boat ramp  as we l l .  That i s  why we a re he re befo re you today  ask i ng  you to 
s u pport SB 2342 .  

SB  2342, a s  d rafted,  was mode led after North Dakota m u n ici p a l  no i se o rd i n a nces a nd  
specif ica l ly t a i l o red  to no ise contro l  on the  water . Howeve r, rep resentatives from t he  Game  & 
F i sh  Depa rtment h ave advised us  that the b i l l , a s  written ,  wou l d  be very d iffi cu lt to enforce. It 
was a l so suggested that the  b i l l  shou ld  be written to app ly spec ifica l ly to a i rboats a nd  not a l l  
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watercraft, wh ich  i s  cons i stent with wh at we a re tryi ng  to acco m p l i sh  with t h i s b i l l .  Therefo re, 

we wou l d  l i ke to s ubm it an amend ment that wou ld  rep l ace t he  "watercraft no i se  restr ict ions" 

with "a i rboat regu lat ions" that i n c l ude  the  req u i rement that the  a i rboat m ust h ave a m uffl e r  or  

u nde rwater  exhau st a nd  wou l d  be  p roh i b ited from operat ing ½ hour  after  s un set u nt i l ½ hou r  

after  s un ri se .  These ch anges s hou l d  make t h i s  l aw  easy to  enfo rce a n d  wou l d  o n ly a pp ly to 

a i rboats. 

A s ign ificant n u m ber  of No rth Da kota c it i zens  wi l l  see a posit ive i m pact from passage of th i s  

b i l l .  Add it io n a l ly, state waters p rovid e  cr it ica l h ab itat for waterfowl and  othe r  a n i ma l s  

d istu rbed by excessive no i se .  Th is  b i l l  wou l d  be a benefit to  sportsmen .  We ask  th at you p l ease 

pass th i s  b i l l .  

Madam Cha i r, t h i s  conc l udes o u r  test imony. We  wou l d  be happy to  an swer  a ny  q u est ions .  



t/4,u/2_ 
Good morn i ng• Cha i rman  a nd membe rs of the comm ittee .  My name  is Ch r is  
G ronda h l  a n d  I am 55 yea rs o l d .  I h ave spent SO yea rs of my l ife f i sh i ng, h u nt i ng, 
camp i ng, swim m i ng a n d  s imp ly e njoying the  su nset a n d  so l i tude  of the M isso u r i 
R iver south B isma rck .  I hope othe rs have the same opportu n ity I have h ad  with 
my fam i ly a nd fri ends  exp lor ing a nd  enjoyi ng the u n i que  beauty th is r ive r 

provides a long its back waters and  p laces n ot so eas i ly a ccess ib le .  

These backwate r h ab itats of the M issou ri R iver a re the begi n n i ng of the  r ive r 
system's food cha i n .  They p rovide warm, sha l low water where l ife begi n s  for fish, 

frogs, tu rt l es  a nd othe r  w i ld l ife . Waterfowl a nd  sho reb i rd s  seek refuge at n ight to 
roost. They a lso ra i se the i r  you ng here d u r i ng the spri ng a nd s u m me r  a long with 
othe r  ma m ma ls i nc l ud i ng  dee r, beaver, muskrats a nd m i n k. 

Bu t  the re i s  a speci a l i zed mach i n e  that  has  recent ly i nvaded  these a reas  a nd 

th reaten s  n ot o n ly the  peace a nd so l it ude of these s pec i a l i zed h a b itats but 

actua l ly the hab itat a nd wi l d l ife themselves .  

Th is  mach i n e  i s  an a i rboat a nd see i ng is be l iev ing when it comes to th i s  

th i ng  . . . . . . . .  (story at  McLean ramp )  

You may ask  what  d iffe rence is the re, its j ust a boat? However, t he re a re 3 ma i n  
d ifferen ces . 1 )  I ts extreme ly loud  2 )  Whe n most peop le recreate o n  the r ive r 

they do  so do ing day l ight hou rs .  Th i s  th i ng begi n s  its tou r  r ight before da rk and  

th roughout the n i g h t .  And  3 )  I t  h a s  t he  a b i l ity to  nav igate i n  i n ches o f  wate r  a nd 
the refo re ca n p low th rough vegetatio n  a n d  muck  where oth e r  boats ca nnot .  

I am a n  Amer ica n a nd u nde rsta nd freedom a nd r ights but nobody s hou l d  have the 

r ight to de st roy the hab itat a nd peace a nd q u iet of one of the n i cest loca l a reas  
we have .  

P lease s u pport t h i s  b i l l  to p rotect w i l d l ife a nd  hab itat, keep t h e  p u b l ic safe a n d  
keep a q u iet p l a ce q u iet .  
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Th ursday, J anuary 3 1 st, 20 19 ;  9 : 3 0am 
Senate Energy and Natural  Resources Committee 
SB  2 34 2 -Watercraft N o i se  Ordinance 
Oppos i ti o n  Testim ony 

Cha i rman Unruh  and members of the Senate Energy and Natural Resou rces 

Committee, for the record, my name i s  Brooke Larson  and I 'm h ere today to test ify aga i nst 

S enate B i l l  2 342  on  behalf of  sportsmen and women in North Dakota .  I nd ividua l s  be l i eve 

pas s i onate ly i n  the i r  r ights to the enj oyment of the i r  su rround ings. The confl ict ar i ses  

when o n e  pe rson' s  da i ly activity produces  a sound that i s  i nterpreted by someone e lse as  a 

no i s e  o r  pub l i c  nu i sance.  

My h u sband and I l ove to spend t i m e  in the outdoors and en joy th e many hunt ing 

and fi s h i ng opportun i ties  that North Dakota p rov ides .  There have been many early 

morn ings sett ing up  our  decoy spread to get our l im i t  o f  d ucks, wh ich requ i res be ing up 

be fore  the break o f  dawn,  and some l ate n i gh ts bowfi sh i ng for ca rp, wh i ch we are out much 

past  d usk. A l a rge maj ority of  these exper iences  happened on  publ i c  waterways i n  North 

Dakota,  i n  wh ich  we uti l i zed a watercraft to access  p rime h u nti ng and  fi sh ing  l o cat ions that 

th i s  a rea p rovides .  Ut i l i z ing watercraft i s  a p r imary means  o f  transportation for the 

pu rposes  o f  fi s h i ng and hunting i n  the state; i t  i s  an  important part of  the hunt and i n  th is  

context, i t  would be  cl ass i fi ed as a "necessary" sound and comp letely "natura l "  in  that  

envi ronment. 

I strongly be l i eve th is  b i l l  would have an astound ingly negative impact o n  

spo rtsmen ,  res i d ent  a n d  non -res i d ent, who he l p  s u pport the area 's  economy a n d  preserve 

the great h u nting and fi sh ing heritage of No rth Dakota .  I f  th i s  bi l l  were passed i t  wou ld  

d i rectly i m pact ALL  sportsmen uti l izi ng pub l i c  waterways between 10pm and 7am, 

i nc l ud i ng  d u ck hu nters, trappers, bow fishermen ,  and  even sport fi shermen.  
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D uck hunting i s  a popu lar  outdoor  act iv ity i n  No rth Dakota. Wh i l e  du ck hunt ing via 

water or fi e ld ,  the hunter i s  in  pursu it  wel l  before dayl ight in a lmost  every case. If th i s  b i l l  

were to pass ,  i t  wou l d  completely end a l l  morn ing d u ck hunts fo r hun ters on  pub l i c  water, 

based on  the proposed no ise  ordinance o f  88  d ec ibe l s , as well a s  the $50  fi ne that 

accompan ie s  a class two non-crimina l  o ffense, wh i ch i s  the proposed pena lty. In add it ion, 

to p u t  88  dec ibe l s  i nto perspective, a wi n d ow a i r  cond it ioner  wi l l  produce a susta ined  S O  

dec ibe l s  a n d  a wash ing machine can produce  7 0  dec i be ls, whi ch makes 88 dec ibe l s  a 

restr ict i o n  cl o se  to h ouseho ld appl iances .  I f  you pu t  that i n  re lati on  to watercra fts, not even 

a 2 0 1 8  2 - stroke m otor would be under 88 dec ibe l s .  Th i s  wou ld  greatly restri ct any and a l l  

hun t ing  and  fi sh ing on  any motorized watercraft o f  any s i z e .  P lease refer to the art ic le 

p rovi ded  fo r fu rther  information  on  the amount of  sou nd  p ro duced by d i fferent s ized 

m otors 

With tha t  i nformation  provided, I be l i eve th i s  wi l l  a l so  d i rectly i mpact a l l  sport 

fi s he rmen  as  wel l .  Bow, musky, and catfi sh  fi she rmen  are well known to fi sh a l l  h ou rs o f  

the n ight. l f we look  deeper into the  bow fish ing  s i de  o f  this ,  Cha irman Unruh and  

committee members, I ' d  l i ke to  make you wel l  aware o f  the  i mpact that th i s  b i l l  w i l l  have on  

ou r wi l d l i fe popu l ation  i n  No rth Dakota. Bow fi sh i ng  i s  one  o f  the  l a rgest growing sports i n  

N o rth Dakota and  countrywide .  A s  shown i n  the a rti c les p rovided ,  common carp have no  

n atu ra l  p redators and  a r e  the worl d 's  second  mos t  i nvas ive fi sh ,  whi ch we  s e e  p lenty of i n  

ou r  l o ca l  waters .  Common carp c an  consume 2 - 4% of  the i r  body weigh t i n  eggs of  game fi sh 

d u ri ng th e spawn, i ncl ud ing wa l l eye. Bow fi sh ing is much more effective a fter sunset and a 

wel l - p roven way to remove these invas i ve spec ies  from  ou r waters . Over  the las t  5 yea rs, 

• 
myse l f, my husband, and h i s  teammates,  have r id  the waters o f  over 18 ,000  carp from our 
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l oca l  waterways, wh ich has  made a pos it ive impact on  the game  fi sh popu lati on .  Speaking 

with the fi sher ies  department through the ND Game and F ish ,  a l though they don't have a 

spec i fi c  stu dy to p rove the impact, th ey h ave repo rted h i gh wa l l eye ha tches  between 2 0 14 -

2 0 16 .  I b e l i eve i f  SB  2 342 passed,  we wi l l  s ee  i n creased  number  o f  i nvas ive fi sh  populati on s  

and  de creased population  of  native fi sh .  I n  the a rti c le  I 've given you, you wi l l  a l so  see how 

they compete w i th d iving ducks th roughout  the rest o f  th e yea r  for submerged p l ants, 

wh i ch wou ld  d i rectly a ffect our duck populati on  in a negative way. 

S i nce th i s  b i l l  was introduced, I was genu in ely cur i ous  of how many watercraft no i se  

comp la ints were record ed i n  2 0 1 7 - 20 18 .  We took  th e t i me  to  research th i s  and my 

husband  s poke with the d ivi s ion chief/ch ief  game warden and he  repo rted, "There were 

very few no i s e  comp la i nts .  Most of  wh i ch cam e  from one  source . "  I th i nk i t  is sa fe to say 

tha t  th i s  has  not  been an i s sue  i n  the decades  that  spo rtsmen have been uti l i z ing  pub l i c  

waterways for  sport and recreation  i n  ou r  a rea ;  but  more so  an  ind ividua l s  subj ectivity to 

no i s e .  In a d d i t i o n, as sportsmen and members of th i s  commun ity, we respect anyone's r ight 

to l i ve where they p l ease .  I a lso be l i eve tha t  it 's  o nly fa i r  that  res i dents who choose to bu i l d  

the i r  h omes  a l ong the  river a re  to lerant o f  i ntermittent r iver traffi c, day  or  n ight, whi ch i s  

produced by  spo rtsmen only tryi ng to respectfu l ly  enj oy the outdoors .  And mus t  I say, 

s ounds  from watercrafts are inevitab le  when  u ti l i z ing  boat  ramps  to e i ther  access or exit 

pub l i c  water .  

My husband  and I ,  as owners of  a watercraft that we use for sport ing and 

recreat i ona l  h un ting and fi sh ing  on a regul a r  bas i s, have taken measures o f  our  own to  

make our  outi ngs as  peaceful for the s u r ro u n d i ng commun i ty as  poss ib l e .  Th i s  inc ludes  

# 6  
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• 
p u rchas ing $600  muffl ers i n  order to not  d i sturb the peace o f  the community, as  we respect 



• th e i r  envi ronment and  activ it i es that they choose to pu rsue i n  the i r  h ome, j u st a s  we hope  

the communi ty wou l d  do  the  same for the sportsmen i n  North Dakota .  I n  no  way do  we, 

wi th  the use  o f  o u r  watercraft, i ntend to cause any ha rm or to be a pub l i c  nu i sance .  

I fi rmly be l i eve pass ing thi s  b i l l  wi l l  o n ly cause more stress on  our a l ready over busy 

l aw enforcement and hard working game  and  fi s h  department. I wou ld  bet to say that they 

have much better th i ngs to do than respond to a ca l l  i n  the m idd l e  of th e n i gh t  concern i ng a 

boat  correctly, respectfu l ly, and safe ly ut i l i z ing pub l i c  waterways as  "annoying", the term 

u ti l i z ed  i n  Sect i on  1 ,  Subsecti on  1 o f  SB 2 3 42 .  P lease refer to the handout of other  no ises  

deemed  " a nnoyi ng" and  other sound cl a s s i fi cat i ons .  

Lastly, befo re th i s  b i l l  shou ld  ever be  cons idered ,  I be l i eve a fi sca l  study shou ld  be  

compl eted o n  the l o s s  o f  revenue  from spo rtsm en, boaters, and sma l l  bu s i nesses  such as  

• 
gu ides ,  b a i t  s hops ,  sport ing-good stores, and  boat  repa ir  shops  tha t  woul d  occur. 

N ot o nly  i s  th i s  b i l l  poorly written, imposs ib l e  to enforce, and wide ly open  to 

i nterpretat i o n, i t  wi l l  greatly i nh i b i t  the part i c i pat i o n  in and  foster ing of the h i gh ly 

esteemed h unt ing and  fi sh ing heri tage in  N orth Dakota .  Sportsmen i n  No rth Dakota uti l i ze 

the i r  watercra ft for sport or hobby, with a maj o rity d o ing so  with great respect for the 

outdoo rs a n d  the members o f  th i s  commun i ty. I n  no  way does  uti l i z i ng  watercra ft between 

1 0 pm and  7am warrant pun ishment, nor do the hard working law enfo rcement o fficers of 

th i s  state need  to be  spread even more th i n  tha n  they a l ready are respond ing  to 

" annoyance" comp la ints and no ises  that "endanger comfort" .  Not only wi l l  th i s  b i l l  impact 

o u r  ab i l i ty, and  th e generati ons after u s, to en joy the great outdoors, i t  wi l l  d i rectly i mpact 

the  w i l d l i fe popu l at ions o f  th i s  a rea, a s  wel l a s  th e su pport o f  our  bus inesses ,  i n  a very 

• negative way. 
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I n  add iti o n  to my testimony, I h ave n umerou s  s igned pet it i ons o f  non-res ident 

spo rtsmen that vi s i t  our state to hunt and fi sh ,  who wou ld  be d irectly impacted if this b i l l  

s hou l d  pass and  wou ld  be forced to take th e i r  bus iness  e l sewhere, whi ch wou ld  d i rectly 

impact  the economy of thi s  state through the d ecl i ne  of hunting and fi sh ing l i censes ,  

s po rting equ ipment, lodging, and food  purchases that they bring to our community. 

513 z ;'tz 
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Thank you for a l l owing  me  to be h e re today and testify aga inst Senate B i l l  2 342 .  I 

s trongly and  respectfu l ly request, on beha lf  o f  a l l  myse l f, my husband,  and the sportsmen  in  

the state o f  N D  and  beyond ,  that your  committee propose  a unanimous  Do  N ot Pass  moti on  

o n  th i s  b i l l  and  a No  Vote on the  Senate floor. Thank you fo r your  t ime and  cons ideration. I 

wi l l  now stand  to answer any questions  you may h ave. 

B rooke Larson 
B i smarck Res ident and Avid Sportswoman 
bmlarson 1@outl ook .com 
70 1 -42 5 - 2 3 5 9  
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Description 

COMMON CARP 
(Cyprinus carpio) 

The common carp, the largest member of the 
minnow family found in South Dakota, is not 
native to North America. Carp hatch from tiny 
eggs less than 0 .4  inches ( 1  mm) in diameter and 
grow to a weight of 3 3 pounds ( 1 5  kg) and a 
length of 40 inches ( 1  meter) in 5 to 6 years . They 
can live for over 20 years . Carp have stocky 
bodies ,  large scales, and range in color from dark 
olive bronze on the top of the back to lighter 
silvery yellow on the belly . The color intensity 
varies  to blend with the color of the water or the 
habitat background. The tail is forked with 
rounded lobes .  The dorsal and ventral fins have a 
stiff-barbed spine at the front followed by soft 
flexible rays . Carp have numerous rows of small 
bones within the maj or muscle groups of the back 
and sides .  They have good eyesight and are 
sensitive, like all fish, to sound, and disturbances 
in or near the water. They have sensitive 
smell/taste organs in and around the snout that 
assist in feeding . They are sight and smell feeders, 
eating insects, seeds, and other small organisms 
and plants in clear water, and relying on their 
sensitive sense of smell to locate food in turbid 
waters .  The mouth and lips are adapted to extend 
like a short tube for sucking up food. 

Distribution 

FISH 
Status : Common, Introduced 

Carp are abundant in most of the warm water lakes and slow moving streams of South Dakota. The 
species, a native of Asia, was widely introduced in Europe. They were intentionally introduced to this 
country by the United States Fish Commission in the late 1 8 80's ,  being heralded as a new sport and 
food fish. Hardy and prolific breeders, carp spread from these initial stockings into all of the 
interconnected waterways of South Dakota. They have accidentally invaded lakes and ponds along 
with stockings of other fish or live bait . They are now well established throughout the state . 

Natural History 

https : //www3 .northem.edu/natsource/FISH/Comrnon l .htm?fbclid=IwAR21YZmsdSeS9ds- . . .  1 /29/20 1 9  
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p_, 7 Carp prefer slow moving rivers and streams and warm lake habitats with abundant vegetation. They 

feed on a wide variety of plant and animal food items from the waters surface, from vegetation and 
rocks, and from stream and lake bottoms . Shallow sloughs and marshes, adj acent to stream channels 
or lakes ,  are preferred breeding habitats. Spawning is triggered in the spring by warming water 
temperatures and increasing day length, peaking at 62 .6  F ( 1 7  C) . The fecundity per female varies 
with the size of the fish from 36,000 to over two million eggs for a large adult. The females deposit 
their adhesive eggs on aquatic plants or submerged brush as several males cluster around and 
distribute milt into the surrounding water to fertilize them. The fry hatch in three to six days .  These 
0 . 3 9  inch ( 1 0  mm) juvenile fish feed on plankton , at first, moving to larger and larger food items as 
they grow. 

Significance 

Carp are destructive, non-native fish. Carp are omnivorous (eating both plants and animals), their 
bottom feeding habits causing great destruction of aquatic resources. They compete heavily with 
diving ducks, such as canvasbacks, for submerged plants . Carp of all sizes compete with native fauna 
for aquatic food, and destroy the nests and eat the eggs of other spawning fish. They stir up silt and 
degrade the water quality resulting in loss of other more desirable fish and animals .  

Juvenile carp do  provide forage for  game fish, but quickly grow too large for  this purpose. Although 
carp provide good action when caught on rod and reel , they are not classified as a sport fish and are 
difficult to catch much of the year. Their bony structure and often muddy tasting flesh reduce their 
desirability as a food fish. 

Conservation 

The presence of carp in nearly all of our rivers, streams, and reservoirs is a constant reminder that our 
environment is a complex relationship among all habitats and organisms. The introduction of any 
non-native organism may have tremendous impacts on these habitats . It is seldom possible to 
eradicate an organism once it gets established. We must support our management agencies in 
maintaining strict and well enforced regulations regarding the introduction of exotic organisms to any 
of our habitats .  Only after exhaustive research and evaluation should these introductions be allowed. 
Carp have compromised the conservation of most of our clear water aquatic plants and animals, with 
little benefit in return. 

Dorsal - back or top side . 
Exotic - not native to the place they are found. 
Fauna - animals .  
Fecundity - number of eggs. 
Forage - food organisms. 

Glossary 

Fry - small j uvenile fish usually less than 3 "  long. 
Milt - white milky fluid containing sperm. 
Plankton - microscopic plants and animals found in water . 
Rays - stiff but flexible cartilaginous spines in a fin. 
Ventral -belly or bottom side . 

https : //www3 .northern .edu/natsource/FISH/Common l .htm?fbclid=IwAR21YZmsdSeS9ds- . . .  1 /29/20 1 9  
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. Study shows how common carp became invasive I Minnesota Aquatic Invasive Species R . . .  

Minnesota Aquatic I nvasive Species Research Center 
(MAISRC) 

Study s h ows h ow common  ca rp became i nva s ive 
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Minnesota Dafly (http.Jlwww_ mndaily. com/news/metro-state/2015/03/02/study-shows-how-common
carp-became-invasive ). 3/3/201 5 

The world 's second-most i nvasive fish, the common carp, has been the source of complaints about shal low 
lakes i n  southern Minnesota and the metro area s ince the spec ies fi rst came to the state about a century 
ago. 

But much to the bewilderment of researchers and regulators, the fish has never become a nu isance in  the 
northern Boundary Waters . 

Research from the University of Minnesota looked at several factors in more than 550 lakes throughout the 
M idwest to try explaining what has a l lowed the species to become invasive in some places but not others .  

The  research ,  publ ished in t he  conservation journa l  Diversity and  Distributions last month ,  found that c lean, 
c lear lakes a re much  less l ikely to a l low common carp to become invasive and that carp predators, li ke 
b luegi l l ,  play a smal le r  role in control l ing the species. 

"To be ab le to control [carp] , you really need to understand why they are so abundant in the first place," said 

https : //www.maisrc .umn.edu/news/study-shows-how?fbclid=IwAR2 l M-TK-stLmxUBflJq. . .  1 /29/20 1 9  
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Przemyslaw BaJer, the study 's  lead author and a fisheries, wildlife and conservation biology research 
ass i stant p rofessor . 

M innesota Department of Natura l  Resources fisheries researc h  sc ientist and study co-autho r  Tim Cross said 
the D N R  has been trying to control common carp for decades because they can cause s ign ificant harm to 
lakes . 

The fis h ,  Bajer  sa id ,  use the i r  mouths to search through  sed iment at the bottom of lakes for insect larvae to 
eat, and then  d ispe l  the sediment they consume throug h  the i r  g i l l s .  I n  the process ,  they d isturb the lake floor 
so much  that p lants can no longer g row there . 

For h unters ,  th is means waterfowl are less l i kely to stop at the lakes lacking p lants for food . And for boaters 
and lake residents , it means a murk ier-looking lake .  

''They change the l akes  enough that people not ice , "  C ross said . 

Wi ldl ife management sen ior at the U nivers ity of M innesota-Crookston Renee Tomala has been going on 
duck h u nt ing tri ps with he r  father s ince she was about s ix  years o ld . 

She 's  not iced duck populations varying g reatly from year to year at d ifferent lakes , though she's uncerta i n  
whether  carp i s  the cause of that. 

But Tomala  has heard about the effects of carp on duck habitats i n  her c lasses, she said, and worries about 
the future of duck  hunt ing if the spec ies isn't conta ined .  

"Habitat loss and construct ion is a l ready push ing down on  wi ld l ife n umbers ,  and then you add invasive 
spec ies , "  she  sa id .  " I t 's a huge th ing to be concerned about - whether you're a duck hunter or a b i rd 
watcher  or  anyth ing .  If [species] don't have the right  hab itat , they're not go ing to be there." 

To offset the carp prob lem, the Leg is lature began fund ing research  on the species a lmost a decade ago, 
Bajer  sa id .  

Prev ious researc h  has manipu lated certa in  l akes to confirm that  b lueg i l l  presence i nh ibits carp invas ion ,  
Bajer  said .  The next step is to  manipu late new lakes to  test i f  their hypothesis about water c larity can be 

P� . ll 

• confi rmed . 
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Study shows how common carp became invasive I Minnesota Aquatic Invasive Species R . . .  

Eithe r  way, C ross sa id, the research i s  more reason for the state to worK toward cleaner lakes . 

5,/2,Z3VZ.. 
}3/. l't 
-1! 6 
f,j . l2.  

"We do recognize that carp do  best i n  these lakes with poor water qua l ity , "  he said, "so by  try ing to c lean up  
our  lakes,  we' re going to try  to  reduce carp problems . "  

Minnesota Aquatic Invasive Species Research 
Center 

1 35 Skok Hal l I 2003 Upper Buford Circle 
St. Paul , MN 55 1 08-6074 
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POPULAR 
MECHANICS 

Comparison Test: Five Outboard Motors 

> S U B S C R I B E  

A n o-ho lds-barred com par ison test o f  t h e  t o p  fiveoutboards i n  w h i ch 2-stroke, 4-stroke, F icht  a n d  Opt imax 
tec h n o logies s lug it out  head-to-head . 

J u l  31 ,  2000 

Four decades a fter ma n d ati ng the f irst pol l ution control s on  a utomob i les ,  Env i ronmenta l Protection Agency (EPA) reg u l ators 

h ave fi n a l ly g otten a ro u n d  to outboard motors . The big h it comes in a few years w ith the EPA 2006 standa rd .  EPA 2006 

ma n d ates a 7 5  percent red u ction in emiss ion s ,  wh ich essenti a l l y  mea n s  th at conventiona l  two-stroke outboard s can no 

l onger be so ld .  Ma n u factu rers are scramb l i ng  to develop clean-burn i n g  eng i nes th at meet the impend i ng  ru les . 

U n l i ke modern a utomob i les , wh ich a l l  use s imi lar  fou r-stroke ,  EF I  technology ,  outboard motors emp loy new idea s .  However, 

there a re strong  adva ntages and d i sadvantages to each techno logy-d ifferen ces th at a re h ard to sort out without head-to

head testi n g .  

Wh ich  i s  where w e  come i n .  We inv ited representatives o f  a l l  five major outboard motor man u fa ctu rers to jo i n  u s  for five d ays 

of b a ck-to-back  testi n g  at Lake Lan ier, northeast of Atl a nta , G a .  The on l y  po int at wh ich a l l  the new tech no log ies i ntersect is 

1 1 5  hp ,  so  that' s  the eng i ne  s ize we tested . Each manu fa ctu rer' s eng i neers had a whole day to r ig and test the i r  motor, try i ng  

d i fferent props  a n d  mou nti n g  pos itions unti l they were s ati s fied th i s  was the best the i r  eng i ne  cou ld  do  on that hu l l  on that 

water on th at day .  

The  fa ctory e n g i n eers se lected very d i fferent propel lers , try i ng  to match the characteri sti cs of the i r  motors to our  h u l l .  After 

try i n g  three-b l ade  prop s ,  the eng i neers from Honda  a n d  Mercury opted to use  four-b lade prop s ,  wh i ch seemed to g ive 

q u i cker a cce leration  a n d  noti ceably better b ite i n  h igh-speed corners . The other ma n u fa cturers stu ck w ith the i r  three-b lade 

prop s ,  tho u g h  i n  d ramati ca l ly  varied d iameters and  p itches . Part a rt and part s cience ,  propp ing  a boat and  motor i nto a 

perfect system is j u st a s  important as p i ck ing  the rig ht set of tires for a NASCAR ra ce car .  

Our test res u lts a re fasc i nati n g .  Compared to the blue smoke generators of even two years ago, a l l  these 2000 model 

o utboard s are the very models of decorum. Thanks to comp uterized fue l  i njection , they start and ru n without a h i ccup from 

id le  to WOT .  A l l  the outboards in th is  g roup except for the EFI Suzuk i  two-stroke a l ready  meet the EPA 2006 standard .  

:¼:! 6 
P1.& 
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Today ' s  fou r- stroke outboards a re s i gn ifica ntly q u ieter a nd more economica l  to ru n th a n  today's two-strokes ,  b ut a re a l so  

phys i ca l ly l a rger  a n d  s l ower to  a ccelerate . 

H ow We Tested 

All tests were performed w ith only a he lmsman and test eq u ipment operator  aboa rd ,  p l u s  15  pou nds  of test eq u ipment and  

1 O ga l .  of fue l .  A l l  tests were performed severa l times over  an  identica l  cou rse to e n s u re a ccuracy and  repeatab i l ity . 

Sou n d  level rea d i n g s  were taken with an Extech 407735 sound  level meter read i ng  on the A sca le ,  with the sensor  located 

beh i nd  the helmsma n to red u ce wind and  h u l l  no ise .  Fue l  flow rea d i n g s  were taken w ith a F lowSca n 5900 flow meter. Speed 

a n d  a cceleration rea d i n g s  were measu red with a Stalker Sports Rada r ,  ca l i b rated before each ru n .  

A l l  motors were tested o n  con secutive days i n  a s heltered cove a t  the southea st e n d  o f  Lake Lan ier ,  nea r Lan ier  I s l a nds .  

P reva i l i n g  test cond ition s :  60  to 70 deg rees F ,  60  to 70 percent h umid ity , w i nd  a t  3 to 5 knots a n d  neg l ig i b le chop .  

T h a n k s  to R&G Ma r i ne  and  Lan ier Ha rbor Ma ri n a ,  both i n  Bu fo rd , G a .  

H onda B F1 1 5  

Honda ' s  best-se l l i n g  Accord sedan  has an env iab le rep utation for refi n ement a n d  rel i ab i l ity . To create an  EPA 2006-

comp l i a nt outboard ,  Honda  eng i neers cleverly adapted the 2 .3 - l iter fou r-cy l i nder from the Accord . 

The  Accord ' s  2 . 3 - l iter is rated at e ither 135 hp or 150 hp .  The outboard i s  rated at e ither  115 hp or 130 hp when fitted with a 

restr i cted i ntake ma n i fo ld that cuts top-end horsepower. Th i s  mea n s  th at the 115 and  130 outboards perform s imi lar ly across 

most of the powerba n d .  

A DVERTISEMENT - CONTINUE READING BELOW 

The H o n d a  fou r- stroke weig hs  496 pou nds ,  more tha n  any other 115 ,  wh i ch cou l d  be more of a factor on a l i g hter ,  shorter 

h u l l  th a n  o u r  test Ken ner .  On the other hand , the Hon d a  outboa rd is s i g n i fi ca ntly q u ieter tha n  its competitio n ,  s i g n ifi cantly 

more economi ca l on fue l  a n d ,  thanks  to its long-stroke des ig n ,  it has  a fat mid ra nge torq ue cu rve that makes it easy to tow a 

s k ie r  or p u s h  a h eavy boat. 

l 
J 

-# '6 
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Yamaha F1 1 5  

5� Z3 '{l. 
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Y a m a h a  offers both a 1 1 5-hp two-stroke V4 and  a bra nd -new 1 1 5-hp fou r-stroke in l i ne  Fou r that 's EPA 2006 comp l ian t .  

Ya m a h a  e lected to b r i ng  the new fou r-stroke to  th i s  test .  Compared to the Honda  fou r-stroke, the 407-pound  Yamaha i s  

s ig n i fi ca nt ly  l ig hter a n d  more compact .  I t ' s  a 1 .  74- l i ter Fou r der ived from the ex is t i ng  1 .6- l i ter F 1 00,  but  i t ' s  eq u ipped with 

comp uter ized m u l t iport fue l  i nject ion and  a sepa rate th rott le va lve for each i n take ru n ner .  This i s  a very soph is t icated eng ine ,  

comp lete wi th  doub le  overhead camshafts and  fou r  valves per cy l i n der .  

Out  on  the l a ke , the Yamaha  was  a ha i rsb readth s lowe r  i n  acce lerat ion t han  the Hond a ,  a decibel  or  two no is ier ,  0 .6 mph 

faster  and  s ipped v i rt u a l ly the same amount  of  fue l .  I t  a l so  costs $ 1 370 les s .  I n  other word s ,  p retty m u ch ident ica l .  
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Merc u ry 1 1 5  

Mercu ry' s  115 Optimax two-stroke i s  l i tera l l y  ident ica l  to the Optimax 135 and  150 ,  save for a restr ictor r i ng  i n  the in take 

ma n ifo l d  a n d  rep rog rammed eng ine-control computer .  O u r  test 115 cert a i n ly was n ' t  h u rt i ng  for power. It s i g n i fi ca nt ly 

outperformed the other 115 outboa rds  at al l  speeds ,  w h i le b u rn i n g  about  22 percent  more gaso l i ne  than the fou r-strokes at 

w ide-open t h rott le .  F u rthermore, it was the no is iest eng i ne  at h i g h  speed s .  

�13 23 <(2.. 
/. 3 /. / 9  
:JI. t 
Pj - f 7  

The 115  performed l i ke a b i g  motor beca use it i s .  At 442 pou n d s ,  the 2 . 5- l iter V6 weig hs  more t han  the Yamaha  fou r-stroke . 

P l u s ,  t he re ' s  a s izab le  tan k  of o i l  that must be accommodated . L i ft the eng i ne  cow l ,  a nd  the Optimax seems to have more 

add-on  b its  a n d  p ieces t han  the Yama ha or Honda ,  wh i ch mea n s  more potent ia l  trou b le  spots . 

Optimax is Mercu ry 's  n ame for a DF I  system that i njects the fue l  u nder  about  90 ps i  of p ress u re .  The theory is that de l iver ing 

p res s u r ized , more fi ne ly atomized fuel  i n to the cy l i nders res u lts i n  a c leaner b u rn for more power. 

I t  certa i n ly seems to work .  Dur ing  our  testi n g ,  not on ly  was Mercury 's Optimax the best-performi ng 115, it went from 

pro longed id le to fu l l  th rott le  without a stumble or h i n t  of o i l  smoke.  That 's  imp ress ive for a b i g ,  s ix-cy l i nder two-stroke . 
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Evi n rude E1 1 5  

If Mercury 's  1 1 5  i s  a detu ned 1 35 ,  you ca n th i n k  of Ev in rude 's  two-stroke 1 1 5  a s  a hot- rodded 90. It' s a 1 .7- l iter ,  short-stroke 

V4 th at l i kes to rev . At 349 pounds  p l u s  a sma l l  extern a l  o i l  ta n k ,  it weig h s  nea rly 1 50 pou nds  less th a n  Honda ' s  1 1 5 .  Dale 

Ken ner  sel ls  a boat s imi l a r  to ours with twi n  Ev in  rude 1 1 5s ,  capab le  of over 70 mph .  He ca n d o  that beca use two Ev in rudes 

weig h only 200 pou n d s  more than  one Honda .  

Ev i n  r ude  uses  a DFI  system ca l led F i cht, wh i ch atomizes fue l  u nder  p res s u re and  s q u i rts i t  d i rectly i nto each cy l i nder at  up to 

450 p s i .  As  w ith Mercu ry' s  Optimax ,  the res u lt i s  a clean - ru n n i n g  two-stroke w ith no  v i s i b le smoke and  n o  p l ug  fou l i ng  even 

at p ro longed id le .  

I n  o u r  tests , the Ev i n rude w a s  the second-q u i ckest in a cceleration beh i nd  the b ig  Mercu ry ,  b u t  s lowest i n  top speed . 

Remember,  even tho u g h  a l l  these eng i nes a re rated at 1 1 5  hp , the Ev i n rude  is on ly  a 1 . 7- l iter V4 try i ng  to compete with 

Mercu ry' s  2 . 5 - l iter V6 . That' s toug h .  The sma l ler Ev in r ude  u sed s i g n if ica ntly less fuel  th a n  the Mercu ry at midrange cru i se ,  

but con s umed the same amount at  fu l l  th rottle .  It' s obv iou s ly work i ng  h a rder  at h i gh  speed s . 
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S uzuk i  DT1 1 5S 

Wit h i n  a few mont h s ,  Suzuk i  w i l l  i n trod u ce an EPA 2006-comp l i an t  fou r-stroke 115 ,  bu t  for our  test, the company  elected to 

g o  w i th  i ts EFI  two-stroke that  w i l l  cont inue i n  prod uct ion for the next few years .  Compared to the Mercu ry a n d  Evi n rude DFI 

two-strokes , the Suzuk i  i s  s imi lar  i n  performa n ce and no i se .  I t 's a detu ned vers ion of Suzuki 's 140-hp outboard , but i t  weig hs  

on l y  21  pou n d s  more t han  the l i g htwe ight  Ev i n rude .  So i t ' s  a very compact and  effi c ient package . 

The  Suzuk i  i s  a very stra i gh tforward outboard : a 1 . 77- l iter two-stroke i n l i ne  Four eq u ipped with automot ive-style d i g ita l 

mu l t ipo in t  seq uent i a l  e lectron ic  fuel i nject ion , a seconda ry recircu lat ion system to s cavenge u n b urned two-stroke oi l a nd  a n  

�B l3'12 
l .) f . l i  
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P1 .io 

https : //www.popularmechanics.com/adventure/outdoors/a l 83/ 1 27684 1 /?fbclid=I w AR07v5 . . . 1 /29/20 1 9  



• 

• 

• 

Comparison Test: F ive Outboard Motors 

i nteg ra l 6-q u a rt oil ta n k  h idden  u nder the eng i ne  cowl i n g  that e l imin ates the messy  sepa rate oil ta n k  sti l l  u sed by Mercu ry 

a n d  OMC . U n l i ke the others , Suzuk i ' s  1 15 comes comp lete with you r  cho ice of sta i n less  steel p rop . 

Where the Suzuk i  fa l l s  d own is in fuel cons umption . At 3500- rpm cru i se ,  it bu r ns  more th an  twi ce as much gas  as the 

Ev i n  rude  . 

sa z, tti 
l .} 1. 1 1  
-ti t 
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-

What D i d  We Learn? 

The least expens ive motor i n  th is  g roup is  the Suzuk i ,  w h i ch has a n  MSRP of $8934 and ca n be bought "on the street" for 

con s iderab ly  les s .  On the other hand ,  it w i l l  a l so  be the most expen s ive eng i ne  to ru n ,  hav ing  both the worst fue l  econ omy 

a n d  two-stroke o i l  i njection . Suzuk i ' s  new fou r-stroke w i l l  correct these fau lts , but w i l l  l i ke ly cost more . 

The most expens ive motor in th is g roup is the Honda at $10 ,870 (MSRP) ,  though  it, too ,  can be pu rch ased for cons iderab ly  

les s .  The  Honda and  s imi l a r  Yamaha  shou ld  be the least expen s ive eng i nes to ru n ,  s i n ce they cons ume the least amou nts of 

fue l  a n d  o i l  a n d  s hou l d  be v i rtua l ly ma i ntenan ce-free . They ' re a l so  the q u ietest, wh i ch we th i n k  is a big p l u s .  

The Mercu ry a n d  Ev i n  r u d e  D F I  two-strokes a re pr iced i n  the mid d le ,  offer the g reatest n umber o f  dea lers , reasonab le  fuel 

econ omy a n d  the q u i ckest a cceleration . The Evi n rude,  in pa rti c u l a r , i s  s i g n i fi ca ntly l i g hter th an  other 115 outboard s ,  wh i ch 

makes it perfect for sma l ler hu l l s  or tw in  i nsta l l ations . 

A l l  five  outboa rd s  were noti ceab ly better than  conventiona l  two-stroke o utboard s-q u ieter ,  smoother ,  more powerfu l a nd  

more economi ca l .  A l l  f ive seem impress ively wel l -fin i s hed , w ith g leami n g  c learcoat pa i nts and  corros ion- res i sta nt parts 

th ro u g h o ut. Wh i ch motor you choose depend s  p rimar i ly  on the s ize a n d  weig ht of your  h u l l ,  wh i ch performa n ce 

cha racteri sti cs a re most important to you and ,  truthfu l l y ,  the best loca l dea ler .  

The Boat :  Kenner  2 1  V-1 50 

We n eeded a test h u l l  th at was perfectly ba lanced , easy  to ri g ,  easy to h a n d le ,  q u i ck to p lane ,  fast, ad aptab le  to f ive d i fferent 

e n g i nes  w ith s haft lengths of e ither 20 or 25  i n . ,  had lots of room for test gear  a n d ,  l a st b ut not least, looked p retty i n  ou r  

p h otos ! 

Everyone we ta l ked to s u g gested Ken ner Boats , Cou nty R d .  63 E. , Knoxv i l l e ,  AR 72845 ; 501-885-3171;  

www . ken nerboats . com. Cou s i n s  B i l l  and  Dale Ken ner enth u s ia sti ca l l y  ag reed to make a stripped vers ion of the i r  center

con so le  21 V-150 ,  21  ft. 7 i n .  long ,  with a 91- i n .  beam and 16 deg rees tra nsom. It' s  hand- la i d  fi berg l a s s ,  100 percent foam

fi l led a n d  covered by a five-yea r warranty .  

Th i s  p a rti c u l a r  hu l l  h a s  the  tra nsom cut down to 23 i n .  a n d  i s  eq u ipped w ith a n  a i rcraft a l umi num CMC Power L i ft rated for 

300 hp .  T h i s  a l lowed u s  to test eng i nes with either  a 20- or 25- i n .  s ha ft. 

For  th i s  test, Da le  rep l a ced the u sua l  36-ga l .  tan k  with a 15-g a l .  tan k  a n d  left off most of the extras .  What rema i n s  a re a 

cente r  con so le  w ith 15- i n .  sta i n less steel wheel and  l ive ba it we l l ,  a 94-q u a rt i ce chest/helm seat with fl ip-back cush ion , a 

forw a rd sto ra g e  locker a n d  lots of deck space.  The boat came out at 1209 pou n d s ,  ready to ru n .  

Da le  a l s o  made  five i denti ca l con soles , each one preri gged with the i n struments and  th rottle for o n e  o f  the five test 

outboa rd s .  Th i s  saved us l itera l ly  days when switch ing from one outboard to another .  Two men cou ld switch con soles i n  

mi n ute s ,  ready  for t he  next test motor .  Rea l ly ,  rea l l y  s l i ck .  L i ke o u r  Ken ner .  

border="2"> 

�ZY-/Z 
I . > /. I 1 
#6  
p� . 1.2.. 

https ://www.popularmechanics.com/adventure/outdoors/a 1 83 / 1 27684 1 /?fbclid=I w AR07v5 . . .  1 /29/20 1 9  



• 

• 

• 

Comparison Test :  Five Outboard Motors 

Evin  rude 

E 1 1 5  FPX 

> 

H onda B F 1 1 5  A YLA 

> 

Merc u ry 1 1 5  O pt imax Sa lt  Water 

> 

Suzuk i  DT1 1 5S 

> 

Yamaha F1 1 5  TXRY 

S haft Length 

> 

2 5  i n .  
> 

20 i n .  

> 

20 i n .  

> 

20 i n  . 
> 

2 5  i n .  

E n g i n e  D ry We ight  

> 

349 l b .  

> 

496 l b .  

> 

442 l b .  
> 

370 l b .  

> 

407 l b .  

E n g i n e  Ty pe/D isp lacement (cu .  i n .Ice) 

SPEC IF ICATIONS 

ADVERTISEMENT - CONT INUE  READ I N G  BELOW 

Sponsored Video 
Watch t o  learn more 

VISIT SITE NOW 

� Z3'{Z 
J . 3 1 . J q  
# b  
p,1 . 2.3 
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> 

2-cyc le ,  60 d eg rees V4/ (105 .4 /1726) 

> 

4-cycle ,  SOH C  16-valve l n l i ne Fou r/(137/22 54) 
> 

2 -cyc le ,  60 d eg rees V6/ (153/2507) 

> 

2 -cyc le ,  l n l i n e  Fou r/ (108 .2/1773) 

> 

4-cyc le ,  DOH C 16-va lve l n l i ne Fou r/(106.1/1741) 

I n d uct ion 

> 

D i rect Fue l  In jection 
> 

EFI  
> 

D i rect Fue l  In jection 
> 

EFI 
> 

EFI  

Power 

> 

115  hp @ 5 500 rpm 
> 

115  hp @ 5 500 rpm 
> 

115  hp @ 5 500 rpm 

> 

115  hp @ 5 500 rpm 

> 

115 hp @ 5500 rpm 

Drive System/ Prop 

> 

2 .2 5 : 1/ 14 .75x17 3-b lade Viper 
> 

2 .00 :1/  13 . 2 5x17 4-b lade  Honda 
> 

2 .00:  1 / 13 . 5x19 4-b l ade  Rev-4 
> 

2 .08 :  1 /13 . 5x20 3-b lade Thu nder  Series 
> 

2 . 1 5 :  1/1 3 . 5x19 3-b lade P ro Series 

Base P r ice 

> 

$10, 000 
> 

$10 , 52 0  
> 

$9490 

!?& ZJ'(Z 
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Comparison Test: Five Outboard Motors 

> 

$8934 , i n c l udes  SS p rop 

> 

$9150 

P rice A s  Tested 

> 

$10 ,473 

> 

$10 ,870 

> 

$9940 ,  i n cl udes  p rop 

> 

$8934 , i n cl udes  SS prop 

> 

$963 5 ,  i n cl udes  p rop 

0-1 5 Acce leration  (sec . )  

> 

3 . 11 
> 

3 .20  
> 

2 .38  
> 

2 . 83 
> 

3 . 40 

0-30 Acce leration  (sec . )  

> 

6 .13 
> 

7 . 74 
> 

5 .64 
> 

6 .14  
> 

7 . 83 

0 -40 Acce lerat ion  (sec . )  

> 

11 .48  
> 

ADVERT ISEMENT - CONT INUE READ ING BELOW 

TEST RES UL TS 
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Comparison Test: Five Outboard Motors 

13 . 19  

> 

9 . 3 8  

> 

11 .74  
> 

13 . 2 5  

T o p  S peed ( m ph/rpm) 

> 

44. 1@5900 
> 

44 .4@5800 
> 

48 . 0@ 5600 
> 

46. 8@5 500 
> 

45 .0@5800 

S o u n d  Leve l ( I d le/C ruise/WOT) (dbA) 

> 

89/106/118 
> 

76/104/106 
> 

81/106/121 

> 

89/111/114 

> 

81/105/108 

Fuel C o n s u m pt ion ( g ph@rpm) ( Id le/C ru ise/WOT) 

> 

0 .4@650/ 3 .6@3500/ 1 1 . 0@5850 
> 

0 .2 @625/ 4 .1@3500/ 9 . 0@5600 
> 

0 .2@550/ 4 . 5@3500/ 1 1 . 0@5600 
> 

0 .3@650/ 7 . 5@3500/ 16 .0@5500 
> 

0 . 5@700/ 4 .0@3 500/ 9 . 0@5800 

WATCH NEXT 
i Kamper  X-Cover 

?lj Z3<ti 
/. ', / . I f  
tJ I, 
p5 . 2-t 
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To Whom It May Concern: 

j!J Z.3'fZ 
I .'1:,1.1 1 
41 t 
P6 - Z1 

I am a non-resident sportsman who enj oys travel ing to the great state of  North Dakota to hunt 
and/or fi sh .  My time to enj oy the outdoors in North Dakota i ncludes purchasing 
hunting/angl ing l icenses, hotel rooms, fuel , food, sporting equipment, and other suppl ies from 
businesses within North Dakota. During these trips, I often uti l ize watercraft with two-stroke 
motors, mud motors, and/or other high horsepower motors to access hunting and fishing 
spots between dawn and dusk; the same types of  watercraft whi ch would be outlawed by 
Senate Bill 2 342 .  I f  SB 2 342 passes and the watercraft I rely on are outlawed in North Dakota, 
I , along with many other sportsmen who plan to enjoy this  states great heritage of hunting 
and fishing, wi l l  be  forced to take our bus iness to other states that provide more recreational 
opportunity. The hunting and fish ing opportunities available in North Dakota are highly 
esteemed and I hope to return and enjoy my time there for years to come. 

I urge you to protect the rights of sportsmen and the great outdoor heri tage of North Dakota 
and vote N O  on Senate Bi l l  2342 .  

Phone :  



T Whom I L  Ma C ncern: 

J am a no 11 �res 1dent  · po ·m.an who en joys t ra e l lng t o  the grea t s late o J Nortl1 Dakota lo hun t  
and/or  lisb . My U m  Lo en joy t he u t.do  r-"' 1 1 1  N rth Dakolil includes purd1asmg hunu ng/Jngll ng 
lkenses, hot I rooms, fuel ,  lood , sport i ng  equ ipment ,  aml o ther up pl ies f rom bllSlne · ·es wi t h in 
Nort h  Dakol il . u rmg t.h se lrlps, 1 oJ teD uu l l ze watercra t wilh two-st roke motors. mud mulors, 
nd/or o ther  perlom1ance watercra f t  Lo ac:ce ·s hunting and I shlng spots between dawn ml r.Jusk ;  

th • same type · ol  w terc:raJt whkh wouJ tl be out l wed by Senate B I i l  2 3 4-2. l l  SB  2342 passes and 
th wat erc:ra l t I re ly on are ou tl.1wed In North DL kot , I ,  a long wilh m.1 ny other porlSm 11 who plan  
t en joy th 1 s  sta t es great her i tage of hunt ing  ;:m cl fish ing. w l l l  be  Jorced lo t ake ou r  bus i ness to o ther 
s les  that p rov ide more recreat iona l opport un ity. The hun tmg and l lsh lng  opportu mt:J e  vaJJab le 
m North Dakota a re highly es teemed and i hope to return and en  oy m t ime ll1t!re for ea rs to 
ome. 

I YCit: yyu 1° .PCPJi:rL Lht: cli.:Jus 01 sp0r1.>1»1m aaiJ Lbe:: i:mH outdoor herlt-1,�i: or Nucth D.ilsP\il and 
vute NO PO Sepal!! Bill 3·12, 

S igna t u re: 

N me :  

Phone: Noah Waltemath 

(608) 387-41 89 



To Whom It M.iy Concern 

I Jfll a non·re,,dent sporbm.111 who enjoy, tr.weJJng to  the greJt stilte ol North  Dak11t,1 111 hunt 

and/or 1 1,h. My um to enio the outdoon. 1 11 North Dakot a 1 11dude, purchasing hu11 tmg/anghng 
hum , hotel rooms, luel, rood, •11ort lng equipment, and other s11p11he> lrom b1C>1 110,s,es w, t lun 

Nort h Dakota. During these t rips, I o l tt'n uullze ,v-.itercralt wi th two-stroke motor,, mud motor 
and/or other perlortnJn<e w.itercra l l  to alCess hunung ,md fish ing ,pots betwet'n daw11 and dusk; 

th • �me typ.,, of watt'rcrall which would be uut l .1, ed by Senate Bil l 2342 1 1  SB 23 42 pa,,e, and 
the wat crcral l  I rely on .ire outlawed In orth Dakow, I . a long w,lh m.iny other sporurncn who plan 

to enjoy th,, slate, great heritage of hunt,ng and fishing. will be lorco,d lo  l , 1ke our bw.i ness tu other 

,t.1tes that provide 111ore re<reatlllnal opportunity The hunl 111g and lishlng oppurt u11 1 1 11,i. JVal labl • 
1 11 North  D.ikota are highly "steemed and l hope to return Jnd e111oy my t ime there lor ye.irs lo 

lUnlt.1
• 

I unw yuu to 1,1r2t1·,1 tlw nvht> ,,t :suunMnrn ilnd the gcr;ar outtluoc hs:cU,1 ,1r ul North Pakut..1 41uJ 

vote NO on SenML' 8111 2342 

Name: 

Phun.-: 

:; /!; Z,}C(]. 
} . ) l. l q  
-i:/.b 
(J� :},. , 



Tu ' 10m l  

l to hunt 

com · 



To Whom It May Concern : 

I am a non-resident sportsman who enjoys travel ing to 
the great state of North Dakota to hunt and/or fish .  My 
time to enjoy the outdoors in North Dakota i ncludes 
purchasing hunting/ang l i ng l icenses , hote l rooms,  fue l ,  
food , sporting equ ipment, and  other suppl ies from 
businesses with in  North Dakota . Duri ng these trips , I 
often uti l ize watercraft with two-stroke motors , mud 
motors , and/or other performance watercraft to access 
hunting and fish ing spots between dawn and dusk ;  the 
same types of watercraft which wou ld be outlawed by 
Senate B i l l  2342 .  I f  SB 2342 passes and the watercraft I 
re ly  on are outlawed i n  North Dakota , I ,  a long with many 
other sportsmen who plan to enjoy th is states g reat 
heritage of hunti ng and fish ing ,  wi l l  be forced to take ou r 
business to other states that provide more recreationa l  
opportun ity. The hunti ng and fish ing opportun it ies 
ava i lable i n  North Dakota are h igh ly esteemed and I 
hope to return and enjoy my time there for years to 
come.  

I u rge you to protect the rights of  sportsmen and the 
great outdoor heritage of North Dakota and vote NO on 
Senate B i l l  2342 . 

Signatu re :  

Name: John Waltemath 
Phone:  608-387-434� 

S�Z..¥(i 
J.'J/. 11 
# 6  
P.1 - 3/ 
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To Whom I t  M .iy Co ncern : 

I .1 111 .:i n on - resi dent  sportsman  wh o en joys t ravel ing 

to the grea t s ta te of North  Dakota to h u n t  and /or 

fi . h .  My t ime  to enjoy the ou tdoo rs in N o rth  Dakota 

i ncl udes purchas ing h u nt ing/angl i ng l i censes, hotel 

rooms, fue l ,  food, sporti ng equ ipmen t, and other 

su ppl ies from bus inesses wi th i n N o rth Dakota.  

During these tri ps, I o ften ut i l ize watercraft wit l  

two-stroke motors, mud motors, and/or  other 

performa1  ce wa tercraft to a ccess h unt ing and 
fish ing spots between dawn and dusk; the san1e 
types of  watercra ft wh ich wou ld  be o u tlawed by 
Sen a te B i l l  2342.  J f  SB 2 342 passes and  the 
wa tercraft J re ly on a rc o utiawed in  N o rth Dakota , i ,  
a long wi th  many other  spo rts men  who p lan  to en joy 
t h i s s ta tes grea t  heri tage of h u n t i ng a n d  fi sh i ng, wi l i  
b e  fo rced to ta ke our  b u s i ness to other  states that 
provide more recreat iona l  opportun i ty. The hunt i ng  
a nd  fish ing  opportu n i ties ava i l ab l e  i n  North Dakota 
a re h igh ly es tee1ned and i hope  to return a nd enjoy 
1ny ti Jn e there for years to co n1e. 

I urge you to urotect the rights of_s12ortsmen and the 
grea t ()U tdoorheri tage of No�t_h Dako ta_a 1�d_ yote NO 
on Senate Bi l l  2 342 .  

Signa tu re: 

Nan1e :  

DrC\ K� Wa.. r�e- r  
Phone :  

----------

I 

� 6  2>'12 
} . }/. / 1  
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To Wh o m  I t  M ny Concern : 

J .1 1 1 1  n n on - rcs id  n t  sports m � n  wh o n joys t ravel i ng 
to the  grea t s ta te  of  Nort h  Da kota to  h u nt a n d /or 
fi sh .  My t i me to enjoy the ou tdoo rs in N o rth  Dakota 
i nc lu des purchasing h u n ting/a ngl i ng l i censes, hotel 
rooms, fu e l ,  food, sporting  equ i pment, and other  
s u ppl ies from businesses wi thi n N o rth Dakota. 
D u ri ng these trips, I often ut i l ize watercraft wi th 
two-stroke motors, mud motors, and/or  other  
performance wa tercraft to access h u nt ing and 
fi sh i ng spots between dawn and d usk; the san1e 
types o f  watercra ft which wou ld  be o u t lawed by 
Senate B i J I  2 3 42 .  If  SB  2 342 passes and the  
watercra ft I rely on  a rc o ut i awed i n  N o rth  Dakota, i ,  
a long w i t h  many o t h e r  spo rtsmen w h o  p l a n  to en joy 
t h i s  s ta tes g rea t her i tage of  h u n ti ng a n d  fis h i ng, w i l i  

be  forced to ta ke our  bus iness to other sta tes that 
provide more recre� t iona l  opportun i ty. The hunt ing 
and fish ing opportun i ties ava i lab le  in  North Dako ta 
a re h igh ly es teemed and i hope to return and enjoy 
n1y time  there for years to con1e. 

l urge '(O U to protect the rights ofs.12ortsmen and the 
gr�at ou tdo()r heritage of  North Dakota and vote NO 
on Senate B i l l  2342 .  

· ··· · · · · · · ·· 

S igna tu re :  

Nan1e :  

Phone :  

"'fY;afJ -v-J °' ,  fJ" { 

) I i  �/0 C,/J 3 

I 
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To Whom I t  May Concern : 

J m non - rcsid n t  spo rtsman who enjoys tr vel i ng 
to the  gr a t  sta te of  North  Dakota to hun t  and/or 
fi h. My t ime to enj oy the  ou tdoors i n  North Dakota 
inc ludes pu rchasing hun t ing/angl i ng l i censes, hotel 
rooms, fue l ,  food, sporting equ ipment ,  and other 
supp l i es from businesses withi n North Dakota. 
Duri ng these t 1ips J often ut i l ize watercraft with 
two-stroke motors, mud motors, and/or  other 
perforn ance wa ercraft to access hunt ing and 
fish i ng spots between dawn and dusk; the same 
types of  watercra ft which wou ld  be out lawed by 
Senate B i J J  2342. l f  SB 2342 passes and the 
wa tercraft  I rely on a rc outlawed in North Dakota, I ,  
a long with many other sportsmen who p lan to en joy 
th i s  ta tes grea t her i tage of hun t i ng and  fish i ng, w i l l  
be  fore d to  take ou r  bus i ness to other state that 
prov ide more recreat ional  opportun i ty. The hunt ing 
and  fish i ng opportun i ties ava i lab )e  i n  North Dakota 
.are h igh ly esteemed and I hope to return and enjoy 
my tim e  there for years to come. 

I urge you to_pro_tect the rights of suort�men and the 
gr_ea t_pu�9oor he�i tag� of North Dakota a�d ��te NO 
on Sena te B i l l  2342.  

- - - -- - - -- - -

ignatu re :  

Name: Ch�s+ 1 1 1t7 � (' f\-f_ \  

Pho i6Zl5 "393,,��� 1 

!:,tz J<..t-Z. 
/ . } /. / ff  
J:li, 
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T Whom I L  MJy C 11cern: 

J m a non-re!> clcnt spor · 111an who cnjo s lravel Jn  tu the grea t s te o l  Nort.h  akoLJ Lo hun  
a1 1u.l/or Ii.sh .  My t i in L u  n j the u ld  r., 1 11 N u rt h  D.:skold i n  l ui.lt.'S purd1,mng hun t. mg/an l l 11g  
l icer  · , · • hot I rou iru, fu • I ,  loud, ·port i ng e4u lpmcnt ,  aml  other suppl le f rom bus intt.S ·e · wl lh l n  
North a.kota.  urmg the ·e trip , I o lte 1 1  uu l l ze \ alercrafl w i th LWO-J» t  ke m o  rs. muc l  in tors, 
and/c r ut J 1er pe .rlomwn:e watercraJ t  lo  cce l> hunting u11d l hhlug spots between d ,iW II ruJ c.lL1sk ;  
U1 same Lyp •s I watercratt which would be oul lawed by Sennte BI i l  234-2 .  l l  SB  234 passe and 
U1 wat erer. H J re l on are ou t l.Jwed In  orth D, k lil, I , aJong wllh m.my other sp rtsm n wb p l.in 

l en joy t h is states great her i tage I hu ntmg ®cl fish ing, w i l l be lo rced lo tnke our  bus iness lo olher 

le · that prov ide more recre t i  na l  opportun ity. The hunlmg .ind  l ish lng pportu 11 1Ue avaU ble 
1 11 North Dakota are h lghJy esteemed nd I hope lo return am.I en joy rn t ime e for e. i rs l 

ome. 

S agna t u r  : 

N me:  

Phone: 

n ha p 

202074 7 

!?Bz;l.(z. 
I. >I. M 
:t:J. t 
P1 - 3' 



To Whom I t  M.i C ncern 

Lome. 

I ucve YYY to orot«:cl tbs: aa:hls ul >Port:an1s:n su1LI tbs: i:reat outtJuot hs:rllttGe ul North PakutJ aotl 
v2te Q on Sen.,te BW 2J•1i. 

1 1 11,1 t u r  

N m : 

Phone: 

Luke Gerke 

7 1 5299551 4 

?/J, Z 3'(Z 
/ . ) /. /i 
ti '7 
fl�- '!:>7 
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To Whom It May Concern : 

I am a non-res id nt sportsman who enjoys trav l ing to th 
gr at stat of  North Dakota to hunt and/or fish. My time to 
enj oy the outdoors i n  North Dakota includ s purchas i ng 
hunting/ angl ing l ie nses, hotel  rooms, fuel , food, sporting 
quipm nt ,  and oth r suppl i s from busin sses with in North 

Dakota .  During th s trips, I often uti l ize watercraft with 
two-strok motors, mud motors, and/or oth r performanc 
wat rcraft to ace ss hunting and fishing spots betw . en dawn 
and dusk; th sam types of  watercraft which would be 
outl aw d by Senate B i ll 2 342 If SB 2 342 passes and the 
watercraft I rely on  are outlawed in  North Dakota, I , al ong 
with many other sportsmen who plan to njoy th i s  states 
gr at heritage of hunting and fishing, wi l l  be forced to take 
our business to other states that provide more recreational 
opportunity. The hunting and fishing opportuniti es available 
in North Dakota are highly es teemed and I hope to return 
and enjoy my time there for years to come. 

I urge you to protect the rights of sportsmen and the great 
outdoor heritage of North Dakota and vote N O  on Senate Bil l  
2342 .  

Signature : Dylan Satter 

Name:  Dylan Satter 

Phone : 2 18-298- 1 024  

#. t  
(lj . 2:>8 



To Whom I t  May Concern : 

I am a non-resident sportsman who enjoys travel ing to 

the great state of North Dakota to hunt and/or fish . My 

time to enjoy the outdoors in  North Dakota inc ludes 

purchas ing hunting/angl ing l icenses , hotel rooms , fue l ,  

food , sporting equ ipment, and other suppl ies from 

businesses with in  North Dakota . During these trips ,  I 

often ut i l ize watercraft with two-stroke motors , mud 

motors ,  and/or other performance watercraft to access 

hunting and fish ing spots between dawn and dusk ;  the 

same types of watercraft which wou ld  be outlawed by 

Senate B i l l  2342.  If SB 2342 passes and the watercraft I 

rely  on are outlawed i n  North Dakota , I ,  a long with many 

other sportsmen who plan to enjoy th is states great 

heritage of hunt ing and fish ing ,  wi l l  be forced to take our 

bus iness to other states that provide more recreational 

opportun ity. The hunting and fish ing opportun i ties 

ava i lab le in North Dakota are h igh ly esteemed and I 

hope to return and enjoy my time there for years to 

come.  

I u rge you to protect the rights of sportsmen and the 

great outdoor heritage of North Dakota and vote NO on 

Senate Bi l l  2342 . 

Signature :  

Name:  

Taylor Farra r 

Phone: 

865806920� 
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To Whom It May Concern : 

I am a non,resident sportsman who enjoys trave l ing to 

the great state of North Dakota to hunt and/or fish .  My 

time to enjoy the outdoors in North Dakota inc ludes 

purchasing hunting/angl ing l icenses, hotel rooms , fue l ,  

food , sporting equ ipment, and other suppl ies from 

businesses with in  North Dakota . Dur ing these trips ,  I 

often ut i l ize watercraft with two-stroke motors , mud 

motors , and/or other performance watercraft to access 

hunting and fish ing spots between dawn and dusk ;  the 

same types of watercraft which wou ld be outlawed by 

Senate B i l l  2342 . I f  SB 2342 passes and the watercraft I 

re ly on are outlawed in  North Dakota , I ,  a long with many 

other sportsmen who plan to enjoy this states g reat 

heritage of hunti ng and fish ing ,  wi l l  be forced to take our 

business to other states that provide more recreat ional 

opportun ity. The hunti ng and fish ing opportunities 

ava i lable  in North Dakota are h igh ly esteemed and I 

hope to return and enjoy my time there for years to 

come .  

I u rge you to  protect the rights of sportsmen and  the 

great outdoor heritage of North Dakota and vote NO on 

Senate B i l l  2342.  

Signature :  ---

Name: 

Cassandra Arn 

Phone: 

832684690� 

>6z�1.r2 
t . ?7 / . / 9 
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Prepared by the Legis lative Counc i l  staff for 
Senator Unruh 

February 4, 201 9 

P ROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO.  2342 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the b i l l  with "for an Act to create and 
enact a new section to chapter 20 . 1 - 1 3  of the North Dakota Centu ry Code ,  relating to 
regu lat ion of ai rboats to prevent excessive noise ; and to provide a penalty. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMB LY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  A new section to chapter 20 . 1 - 1 3  of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as fol lows: 

Ai rboat regulation - Penalty. 

i_ For purposes of this section, unless context otherwise requ i res: 

a .  "Ai rboat" means a vessel des igned primari ly for  use in shal low waters 
and powered by an internal combustion engine with an ai rplane-type 
propel ler  mounted above the stern and used to push a i r  across a set 
of rudders .  

b .  "Muff ler" means an  automotive-style sound-suppression device o r  
system designed to  abate effective ly the sound of exhaust gases 
emitted from an internal combustion engine and prevent excess ive 
sound when instal led on an engine. 

2 .  The exhaust of an internal combustion engine used on an ai rboat operated 
on the waters of th is state must be equ ipped with an automotive-style 
factory muff ler, underwater exhaust, or  other manufactured device capable 
of adequate ly muff l ing the sound of the exhaust of the engine.  The use of 
cutouts or f lex pipe as the sole source of muff l ing is prohib ited .  This 
subsection does not apply to authorized law enforcement ai rboats or other 
emergency response ai rboats . 

3 .  An  ai rboat operator who violates subsection 2 is gu i lty of a c lass 1 
noncrim inal offense . 

4 .  An ai rboat operator cited for  a vio lat ion of  subsection 2 may not operate 
the ai rboat that is not in compl iance with subsect ion 2 unti l a muff ler is 
instal led . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 

Page No.  1 1 9 .0987 .0 1 003 
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Test imony of Durant and  Sharon Schiermeister in support of SB 2342 

SB 2342 
3.7.19 

Attachment __J_ 

M r. Cha i rman ,  mem bers of the Comm ittee, my n ame  i s  Sha ron Sch ie rme i ster .  I h ave taken t ime 
off work  to be  h ere today, a long with my h usband  Du ra nt, to  testify i n  support of  SB  2342 . We 
a re 3 rd gene ration  fa rmers i n  Emmons County. Ou r  fa rm is  a l ong  the  M issou ri R iver and  we l ive 
by the  H a ze lton recreat ion a rea,  wh ich is about 30 m i les  south of B isma rck on H ighway 1804. 
We a re the ones who asked ou r  legi s l ators to i nt roduce th i s  b i l l .  Th e p u rpose of the b i l l  is to 
esta b l i sh  a no ise restr ict ion for a i rboats .  

We'd l i ke to p rovide  you some background  for the reason beh i nd  th is b i l l .  We h ave l ived by the 
Haze lton Recreat ion Area for over 35 yea rs .  Th i s  i s  a pub l i c  recreation  a rea managed by the 
Corps of Eng i neers .  I t  i s  a very popu l a r  a rea for loca l and out-of-state fisherman ,  waterfowl 
h u nters, a n d  p l ea su re boaters .  Most activity at the boat ra mp  ta kes p l ace d u ri ng  d ayl ight 
hou rs .  So why the  reason for a noise restr ict ion ? 

About fou r  yea rs ago, a n  Eve rg lades sty le a i rboat sta rted us i ng  the  boat ramp .  It wou l d  l au nch 
at n ight, r ight befo re d a rk, a nd  be o ut on the  water u nt i l  the ea r ly hou rs of the morn i ng. The  
no ise from th i s  type o f  boat is unbe l ievab l e .  I t  i s  l i ke the  sound  o f  a n  a i rp l a ne  tryi ng to  take off 
that never gets a i r  born . When it is i n  the vic in ity of a res i dence, it wi l l  wake you u p  from a 
sou nd  s l eep  a n d  p revent you from go i ng back to s l eep .  Th i s  even h appens  when the windows 
a re s hut a n d  a i r  cond it ioner  is ru n n i ng, it i s  t hat lou d .  M any t imes, we h ave h ad  to s l eep i n  ou r  
basement to  esca pe  the  no ise .  We've not iced that the peop l e  on  th ese boats where ear 
p rotect ion a s  we l l .  We have a coup l e  of short videos to demonstrate the noise these boats 
make .  

We  fi rst contacted the  Emmons  Cou nty Sheriff's Depa rtment to  fi l e  a comp l a i nt .  The  sher iff, 
Ga ry S ande rs, a dvised u s  that there i s  noth i ng  they cou l d  do .  We then  contacted the loca l 
game  wa rden ,  E ri c  Sch m idt with the N D  Game  & F is h .  He  i nd icated the re was noth i ng  he cou ld  
do .  We a l so contacted the Corps of  Engi n eers to  see if they wou l d  i m p lement qu iet hours for 
the boat ram p, eq u a l  to what they h ave posted at the i r  cam pgrounds, b ut they were not 
i nte rested i n  do i ng  that .  We met with the Emmons  County Com m iss ione rs a n d  they d id  not 
know what to do  for th i s  s ituat ion s i nce it was dea l i ng  with watercraft .  We h ave a lso had 
conve rsat ions  with Terry Ste i nwa nd ,  the d i rector of N D  Game  & F ish,  to make h im  aware of the 
s ituat ion ,  but  he i n d i cated there is noth i ng  they ca n do  unde r  cu rrent law. F i n a l ly, my husband  
a nd  a ne ighbor  t r i ed  app roach i ng  the  owner  of  the a i rboat to  l et h im  know how d i s ru ptive the 
no ise of the  boat  was to those of  us l ivi ng  i n  the  a rea and suggested h e  respect the commu n ity 
by not keep i ng  u s  u p  a l l  n ight, but that a lso was not s uccessfu l .  That is why we a re he re before 
you tod ay ask i ng  you to su pport SB 2342. 

SB 2342, a s  o rig i n a l ly d rafted, was mode led after North Da kota m u n ic i p a l  no ise o rd i n a nces a nd  
specifica l l y  t a i l o red to  no ise control on  t he  water. However, rep resentat ives from the Game  & 
F ish Depa rtment a dvi sed us  that the b i l l  wou l d  be very d ifficu lt to enforce a n d  that the b i l l  
s hou l d  be written  to  a pp ly specifica l ly to  a i rboats a n d  not a l l  watercraft, wh ich i s  cons istent 
with what we a re tryi ng  to accom p l i sh  with th i s  b i l l .  Th e engrossed vers ion of the b i l l , wh i ch  i s  
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before you today, p rovides  that a i rboats m ust m uffl e the sou nd  of the  exh au st from the motor. 
However, th i s  only p a rt i a l ly resolves the  no i se .  With th i s  type of boat, the sou nd  of the a i r  
b l ades that p rope l  t h e  boat i s  more extreme  t h a n  the engi ne  a n d  t h e  no ise ca n not be  b locked 
out of you r  home, wh ich was demonstrated in the vi deo .  The refo re, we fee l  it i s  im porta nt to 
p l ace a l im it on hou rs of operat ion  for a i rboats .  We wou l d  propose that the  b i l l  be amended to 
a l low a i rboats to operate between the hou rs of 5 :00 a .m .  to 1 1 :00 p .m .  Th i s  wou l d  p revent 
d isru pt ion to resi d ents d u r i ng  the m i dd l e  of the  n i ght, yet st i l l  a l low fo r early morn i ng  d uck 
h u nt i ng  and some ea rly morn i ng  and  n ight t ime  ca rp fish i ng .  D iscuss ions with the  ND Game  & 
F i sh  i n d icate that th i s  amend ment i s  reasonab l e  and  they d i d  not ra ise any concerns with 
enforci ng  th i s  b i l l .  

Passage of  th i s  b i l l  wi l l  benefit a l l  c it i zens  who res ide by  pub l i c  waters, whethe r  i t  be  the  
M issou ri R iver, La ke M etigosh e, B rush  La ke o r  a ny of  the many l a kes or  rese rvo i rs i n  the State. 
We ask that you p lease cons i de r  amend i n g  the b i l l  to l im it hou rs of operat ion a nd  pass t h i s  b i l l .  

M r. Ch a i rman , t h i s  conc l udes ou r  test imony. We wou l d  be ha ppy to  a nswer a ny  q uestions .  
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Proposed Amendment to Senate Bill No. 2342 
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5. Airboat operation shall be prohibited from 1 1  :00 p.m. to 5:00 a.m. This section shall not 
apply to authorized law enforcement airboats or other emergency response airboats. 

6 .  An airboat operator cited for a violation of subsection (5) is  guilty of a class 1 noncriminal 
offense . 

3 
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From:  Brett W. Mea l io <brettm@ki rkwoodban k . com> 

Sent: Wednesday, Ma rch 6 ,  2019 8 : 14 AM 

To :  me iste r@bekte l . com 

Subject: Testimony 
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P l ease a ccept my writte n statement as I am  una b le  to attend today's hea r ing due  to a t ime confl ict .  

My wife a nd I l ive 2 m i les north of the Haze lton boat ra mp  on  the  west s ide of H ighway 1804 i n  Emmons 

County, ND .  There have been numerous t imes over the past 2 yea rs were an  a i rboat is be ing used 

th roughout the n ight on the back-wate rs of the M issou ri Rive r west and  north of ou r  residence .  The 

loud eng ine no ise has  awaken us in the m idd le  of the n ight o n  more than  one  occas ion .  As a n  avid 

outdoorsman, I unde rsta nd the importa nce of the ea rly morn ing  activity however, my comp l a int is not 

a bo ut what they a re do ing but the manner  in which they a re way they a re do ing it . The eng ine, and  

more impo rta nt ly, t he  fa n no ise a re extreme ly loud and  is cont i n uous wh i l e  the boa t  is moving. 

P lease a mend the proposed bi l l  to l im it the hours of operat ion of the a i rboats to between 5 am and 11 

pm.  

Tha n k  you fo r you r  cons iderat ion i n  th is matte r . 

B rett Mea l io 

701-527-1391 
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Representat ive Porte r a n d  Members of the  House Natu ra l  Resou rce Com mittee :  

My n a m e  i s  Chr i s  G rond a h l , from B i sma rck  , I  a m  5 5  a nd have e njoyed t h e  use of the M issou r i  

R ive r fo r at l ea st 50 of those yea rs. 

I am in su p po rt of 582342 a nd wou l d  l i ke to see the n ight restr i ct ions  a dded back to the b i l l .  

No ise emi tted from these craft i s  a b ig issue to cons ider for both d ay  a n d  n ight hou rs beca use 

of d istu rba nce to the pub l ic who have a lways enjoyed the peace a n d  q u iet of the  M issou ri 

R iver fo r fis h i ng, camp i ng, ca noe i ng, h i ki ng o r  even l iv i ng  i n  homes  o r  fa rms  with i n  m i les  of the 
r ive r .  An i s sue  equa l ly important a re wi ld l ife species l ike waterfowl and shorebirds along the 
r ive r that a re chased away from where they spend t he i r  n ights roost i ng a nd ra i s i ng you ng 
d u ri ng  the sp r i ng a nd s ummer. Not to ment ion fi sh a nd othe r  aquat ic spec ies t hat ra i se you ng 
in  these s h a l l ow, wa rm backwaters . 

U n l i ke othe r  wate rcraft, a i r boats d raft very l itt le water a nd can t rave l i n  extreme ly s h a l l ow 
water where other  motorboats ca n not, d a mag i ng both w i l d l i fe a nd t he i r  ha b itats .  Th i s  is  
pa rt icu la r ly true at n ight .  At present t ime, th is iss ue  is be ing d i scussed beca use of on ly one 
boat owner .  I t s  u se negat ively affects way too ma ny peop le, w i l d l i fe a nd h a b itat to not str i ct ly 
regu l a te it' s use .  Be ing in the m i l ita ry a round  a l ot of no ise a n d  a i rc raft, a person rea l i zes the 
i m po rta nce of e a r  p l ugs a nd why ru nways don 't  be long in res i dent i a l  a rea s .  It' s extreme ly l oud  
a nd there i s  a p l ace for eve ryth i ng  but  the r iver i sn ' t  t he  p l ace for th i s .  One  of  my fr i end s  to l d  
me he  wa s  fi s h i ng and  h ea rd a no ise wh ich he  fi rst d escr ibed a s  a p l a n e  com i ng i n  for a c ra sh  
la n d i ng. The  boat then  appea red a rou nd  the  corner .  I t  wou l d  be ve ry t ime ly  to create these 
regu lat ions  now before the prob l em becomes la rge r .  

Owners of the loca l craft wi l l  make a rguments that  t h e i r  boat  i s  a needed too l to h a rvest ca rp 
a n d  h u nt d ucks s i nce it i s  a bus i ness they a re ma k ing out  of it .  Both carp and d ucks have bee n 
ha rvested qu ite successfu l ly i n  th i s  locat ion a n d  a cross the state fo r yea rs a n d  yea rs by means  
o f  waders, ca noes, f latboats a n d  sma l l  a nd  l a rge outboa rd s  without  destroy i ng  t he  reason 
w i l d l ife a re there a nd  ava i la b l e  i n  the fi rst p l ace .  Its da mag i ng  a nd ove r-the-top and the re i s  
s im p ly too much at  r i s k  from what  a ppea rs to be a th ri l l -seek i ng r id e  more t h a n a nyth i ng. I 
wou ld s u re a pprec iate what cou ld be done  to cont i n u e  the s u p po rt of t h i s  b i l l  a s  we l l  a s  the  re
i n c l u s ion  of t he  n ight t ime  restr ict ion removed by the  Senate com mittee 

Ch r is  G ronda h l  
9200 Syca more La ne  
B i smarck  
701-255-4164 
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Attachment _j_ 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota 

2 I Century Code, relating to regulation of airboats� to prevent excessive noise; and to provide 

3 a penalty. 

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

5 SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 20.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

6 and enacted as follows: 

7 AiFboat FegulationRegulation of noise from boats - Penalty. 
8 .1... For purposes of this seetion, unless context otherwise requires: 

9 
1 0  
1 1  

1 2  
1 3  
1 4  

1 5  
1 6  
1 7  
1 8  
1 9  
20 

21  
22 

23 

:§:.: "Airboat" means a vessel designed primarily for use in shallow 'Naters and 

powered b;· an internal combustion engine with an airplane type propeller 

mounted above the stern and used to push air aeross a set of rudders. 

b. "Muffler" means an automoti>.•e style sound suppression dc1+'iee or system 

designed to abate effectively the sound of exhaust gases emitted from an internal 

combustion engine and pre·+'ent excessive sound when installed on an engine.A 

boat operated on the waters of this state between the hours of twelve midn ight 

and five a.m. may not produce a noise in excess of eighty-eight decibels for more 

than ten minutes . 

2.. The exhaust of an internal combustion engine used on an airboat operated on the 

1Naters of this state must be equipped 1Nith an automotive style factory muffler, 

underwater exhaust or other manufactured de•+'ice capable of adequately muffling the 

sound of the exhaust of the engine. The use of cutouts or flex pipe as the sole source 

of muffling is prohibited. This subsection does not apply to authorized law enforcement 

airboats or other emergency response airboats.For purposes of subsection 1, the 
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decibel level of a boat must be measured from the shoreline closest to the locat ion 

from wh ich a complainant or other i ndividual not iced the noise. 

� An airboat A boat operator who violates subsection 2th is section is guilty of a class 1 

noncriminal offense. 
4 .  /\n airboatA boat operator cited for a violation of subsection 2th is sect ion may not 

operate the airboatboat that is not in eomplianee with subsection 2 produced the noise 

in violat ion of th is sect ion until a muffler is installed. 

Page No. 2 19.0987.03001 
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Prepared by the Leg is lative Counci l stafl for h 
3
� Representative Heinert ttac ment 

March 1 2 , 201 9 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO.  2342 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  replace "ai rboats" with "boats" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 7, replace "Ai rboat regulation " with "Regulation of noise f rom boats" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 8, remove "For purposes of th is sect ion, un less context otherwise requ i res:"  

Page 1 ,  replace l ines 9 through 14 with "A boat operated on the waters of th is state between 
the hours of twelve midn ight and five a .m .  may not produce a noise in  excess of 
eighty-eight decibels for more than ten m inutes . "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 5 , remove 'The exhaust of an i nterna l  combust ion engine used on an ai rboat 
operated on the" 

Page 1 ,  replace l i nes 1 6  through 20 with "For purposes of subsect ion 1 ,  the decibel level of a 
boat must be measured from the shorel ine closest to the location from which a 
compla inant or  other ind ividua l  not iced the noise . "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 1 , replace "An a irboat" with "A boat" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 1 , replace "subsection 2" with "th is sect ion" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 23, replace "An a irboat" with "A boat" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 23, replace "subsection 2" with "th is sect ion" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 23 , replace the second "ai rboat" with "boat" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 24, replace "is not in compl iance with subsect ion 2" with "produced the noise i n  
violation of th is sect ion" 

Renumber accord ing ly 
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